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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the company. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 46, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in April 2008 and chairman
of the Company in June 2008. He took up the role of Chief
Executive Officer since 30 June 2014. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
has over 10 years' experience in corporate finance transactions
and investments, and managerial position involving listed and non-
listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a Master’'s Degree
in Business Administration (Finance) from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1995 and Bachelor of Electronic Engineering in
Computer (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in 1993.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the son of Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George,
Executive Director.

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George, aged 74, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 30 June 2014. He obtained a higher
certificate in Mechanical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a diploma in Plastic Technology from Stddeutsche Kunstsoff-
Zentrum, West Germany. He had worked in multinational chemical
companies for 30 years in sales, marketing and management
positions. Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George is the father of Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, Executive Director and Chairman.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, aged 58, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained Ph.D. Degree in Computer Science from the University
of Minnesota, USA in 1989. In the same year, he was appointed
as an Associate, Research Staff in the Institute of Systems Science
at National University of Singapore. In 1999, he was awarded
a Teaching Excellence Appreciation Award by the Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and was elevated as a Senior Member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He is now the chairman and
chief executive officer of Asia Vision Technology Ltd.

Mr. Tam Wing Kin, aged 52, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008. He is a
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising). Previously, he had worked in one
of the leading international accountancy firms and several listed
companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in
accounting field.

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex, aged 55, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He is the Independent Non-executive Director of e-Kong Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and On Real International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. He obtained a BSc (Hons)
degree in Electrical Engineering from University of Bath (UK) in
1986 and subsequently a MBA degree from Heriot Watt University
(UK). He has over 15 years working experience in financial market
and corporate finance activities in both Hong Kong and China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ng Suk Fun, aged 59, is a director of a major subsidiary of the
Company. She joined the Group in March 2011. She has over 20
years of working experiences in the garment industry. She oversees
the manufacturing, sales and marketing, merchandising as well
as general administrative activities of the swimwear and garment

segment of the Group.

Ms. Ng Ka Sim, aged 45, is the Group Financial Controller of
the Company. She joined the Group in November 2011. She has
extensive experience in auditing and financial management. She
had worked in multinational accounting firms and has over 10
years' experience in auditing. She is a member of CPA Australia
and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She obtained a Bachelor of
Accounting in Australia.

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, aged 32, is the Company Secretary and
assistant finance manager of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2008. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the first year for Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
and its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”) to prepare the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) to
highlight its environmental, social and governance performance.
This ESG report is published under the recommendations of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
for the performance reporting on relevant aspects (the “ESG
Guidelines”).

SCOPE, MATERIALITY, AND REPORTING PERIOD OF THIS
REPORT

During the reporting period for the year ended 30 June 2017
(the "Reporting Period”), the Group is mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and garment
products, the principal places of business of which are located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Kingdom of Cambodia
("Cambodia”), while the Hong Kong office is mainly responsible
for the relevant compliance matters regarding to the Company'’s
listing on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of the Stock
Exchange and as the office of garment factory for processing
orders, customer service and general logistical matters. The Group
has decided to include in this ESG Report the performance of the
Group's subsidiaries at different levels in the PRC and Cambodia
and Hong Kong office in the three areas of environmental, social
and governance during the Reporting Period. All information below
is derived from the official documents or internal statistical reports
of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE HERERBRE

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

In addition to reporting our achievements in this ESG Report, we
welcome stakeholders’ feedback regarding our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please share
your views with us through the followings:

Postal Unit B, 5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building,

Address: 1 Wing Ming Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2520 6020

Email: admin@luxey.com.hk

Website:  http:/Awww.luxey.com.hk

MISSION AND VISION OF THE GROUP

Listed on the GEM, the Group is currently focusing on the
manufacturing and trading of swimwear and garment products.
We keep on strengthening our production management, including
raw material procurement and production technology, striving
to provide quality products for customers. Meanwhile, the
management of the Group formulates suitable business strategy to
optimise internal resources by following market trend and situation,
continues to pursue business diversification.

As a responsible enterprise, while promoting its business growth
actively, the Group is committed to striking a balance among the
interests of different stakeholders in the society. We value the
communication with investors, shareholders, customers, staff,
business partners and suppliers, society and other stakeholders in
getting to know what they need and balancing the interests of
each party proactively, so as to promote our corporate sustainable
development.
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We are committed to:

TR

Partners and Suppliers:

BIERH MU ER:

Customers:

BF

Staff:

il
H

Investors and shareholders:

& FH MR

Society:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERBRE

Continuously optimising the procurement system to control raw material prices
and other risks and eradicating corruption acts

Establishing a long-term and friendly cooperative partnership for mutual benefits
and common growth

BHEBCKEHE EHRMHERSERR HR8ES1TA
BYRBEMAEFOEERE BEEEMN  KRKEK

Performing product liability and service responsibility

Identifying client needs and continuously improving product and service quality
Respecting clients’ privacy and protecting their interests
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Providing a safe working environment

Ensuring all staff are treated equally and with respect

Supporting staff development through internal training and other channels
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Complying with relevant regulations

Disclosing corporate information in a timely manner
Reinforcing corporate governance and risk control
Improving operation efficiency to create desirable returns
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MERHREER
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Giving back to the society and promoting self-reliance

Raising staff's awareness in environmental protection and helping the needs,
nurturing virtue and values

Devoting to developing new products for convenience of the society
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE HERERBRE

Environmental Protection

The Group sets up plants in the PRC and Cambodia to
manufacture swimwear and garment products. There is a set of
stringent production guidelines in our plants, including energy
conservation, control and disposition of pollutants and exhaust
gas. The production activities in our plants meet the Environmental
Protection Law of PRC, Law on Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources Management of Cambodia and other
environmental protection related laws.

The major resources and energy consumed during our production
process include water, electricity, coal, etc. The pollutants produced
during the production process mainly include wastewater, exhaust
gas, waste materials and waste papers.

Environmental protection is also a prerequisite in our business
process. We inspect every business process, reduce direct or indirect
emission. We improve proactively our operating efficiency and
implement environmental measures, so as to reduce the negative
impact on the environment during the operation process of our
business. During the Reporting Period, our energy conservation
and emissions reduction measures include electrical machinery
improvement, recycling paper products such as waste carton
boxes, adopting digital printing to reduce the utilisation of water,
electricity, screen films and other resources.

The Group also provides in-house training or guidelines for
every employee when joining the Group, so as to enhance
their environmental consciousness. We encourage and require
employees to economise and protect environment and reduce
resources consumption. Meanwhile, the Group reviews the
implementation of the abovementioned measures from time to
time, carries out improving measures when needed, strives to
enhance resource’s utilisation rate to achieve energy conservation
and emission reduction, pollutant reduction and environment
protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group confirmed that during the year ended 30 June 2017,
our business operation had not encountered any punishment by
respective governmental authorities due to violation of the above
laws and regulations.

Human Resources

Employees Profile

Employee is one of the key stakeholders affecting the sustainability
of our business, their contribution and support are valuable at all
times. As such, the Group formulated and implemented a set of
comprehensive human resource management system, which is
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
the PRC Labour Law, the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Labour
Law of Cambodia and other prevailing laws and regulations, and
according to the industrial benchmarks.

The Group provides all employees relevant work guideline
documents according to the human resources management
system, which clearly conveyed messages to employees at all levels
regarding the employment policy, work ethics, and occupational
safety and health guidelines of the Company in which our business
is operating. We also ensure employees know clearly their rights
and welfare while working for the Group in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations according to the system and thus
protect the rights of both parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE HERERBRE

The Group determines a reasonable employee remuneration and
welfare package according to their job nature, qualifications and
performance as well as market conditions, with reference to their
performance appraisal. We also encourage internal promotion.
We would provide support for employees in participating on-job
and professional trainings offered by the Group, or other external
trainings as well. The Group encourages its employees to participate
in external seminars to keep abreast of changes and updates on
areas of legal, compliance and financial accounting and reporting.
The Group also encourages our Directors and senior management
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by continuous
professional development training, which includes seminars and
training, updates on regulatory requirements and development and
corporate governance practices.

1. Employment

Through the comprehensive human resources management
system, the Group ensures equal treatment to employees and
no employee will suffer from any discrimination or be deprived
of any treatment due to gender, race, religion, age, marital
and family status, disability or any other reasons. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had not involved in any event of
breach of laws and regulations relating to employment, which
had a significant impact on the Group.

The Group has formulated a competitive package of
remuneration and welfare system, which includes basic
remuneration, over-time salary, employees welfare and rights
(such as mandatory provident fund, insurance, statutory
and additional annual leave, sick leave, various allowances,
severance payments and provision of dormitories). The
Group also provides additional remuneration and welfare
such as evaluation bonus with reference to the employees’
performance, financial results, market situation and other
factors to attract and retain talented employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group also pays social insurance for employees, provide
commercial insurance, supplementary medical benefits in
accordance with applicable laws and industrial practice of the
region.

Although there is no relevant statutory requirement, the Group
requires individual employee to possess relevant professional
qualifications for providing professional services to its
customers and ensure corporate governance standard (such as
accounting staff should possess the professional accounting
qualification of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants).

Employee Health and Safety

The Group puts employee health and safety as first priority.
We provide a safe working environment to our staff (including
inviting third party testing organisations to conduct test at the
workplace, equip offices and plants with sufficient first-aid
appliances and fire prevention equipment).

We established the Health and Safety Committee to formulate
a series of detailed work health and safety guidelines and
they are under stringent supervision and implementation.
With reference to industrial practices and regulations, these
guidelines standardise the processes at all levels and through
many years of improvements and revisions, and ensure that
the health and safety of all staff are being protected. We
identify and assess the safety and health risks annually on each
position of the Company, strictly monitor and evaluate all the
risks exposed due to use of new materials and mechanical
equipment.
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BE HERERBRE

In order to enhance staff to attach more importance on
occupational health and safety, the Group offers staff the
training and safety meetings, and participating in fire drills held
by respective departments and institutions on a regular basis.
The benefits provided by the Group to its long-term employees
include medical, pension and other conventional insurances.

In order to enrich the employees’ leisure life and enhance
their physical and mental health, the Group organises and
arranges all kinds of cultural, sports and social activities to
enhance interaction and understanding among employees,
maintain work and life balance and strengthen their sense of
belongings.

We also organise Christmas party, annual dinner or corporate
meeting during Christmas, New Year and other special
occasions to share the happiness with employees and reward
staffs with excellent performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no significant
incident of safety and work-related injury, and it had not been
involved in any event of breach of laws and regulations relating
to safe working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards, which had a significant impact on
the Group.

Employee Development and Training

In view of the fact that talent resources are key assets to
corporate success, the Group provides professional training to
improve quality, qualification and skills of the employees for
their growth through a series of training programs. The Group
also encourages staff to discuss with management regarding
their promotion and career objectives. The Group encourages
the Directors and senior management to participate in training
regarding Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and corporate governance from time to time, so as
to improve the internal control of the Company, and at the
same time, we also encourage accounting staff and company
secretary to conduct a periodic update on relevant professional
knowledge.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The professional training and development programs including
but not limited to:

e Professional knowledge of swimwear and garment
production;

e  Occupational safety and health seminars;

e Seminars/guidance on regulations relating to human
resources, anti-corruption; and

e Knowledge relating to Listing Rules and corporate
governance

In addition, the Group also provides various trainings on those
areas such as enterprise management, project management,
communication skills and presentation skills in relation to the
occupational development of staff.

Labour Standards

The Group believes that provision of safe, efficient and
appropriate working environment and labour policies is
essential to employees, our most valuable assets. The Group's
internal rules and labour system are made in strict adherence
to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Regulation on Labour Security Supervision
issued by the State Council of the PRC and the Labour Law
of Cambodia and by reference to international standards. All
recruitment processes and promotion activities are stringently
implemented and supervised according to the human resource
management system of the Group.
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BE HERERBRE

The codes of conducts are clearly set out in all employment
contracts and staff codes of the Group. The conducts of all
employees (including Directors and staffs at all levels) are under
a strict supervision to avoid any non-compliance incident. The
Group will conduct investigations, punishment or dismissal to
relevant employees immediately when any illegal behavior is
being discovered. If necessary, the Group will further improve
the labour mechanism against illegal behaviors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no significant
safety issue. There was no child or forced labour in the Group's
operations, nor any discriminating incident involving race,
religion, age and disability.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing swimwear and
garment sectors for many years and has established a good
reputation in the industry. The Group develops a set of
comprehensive internal purchasing system in accordance with the
applicable laws and standards in the PRC, Hong Kong as well as
Cambodia. During the Reporting Period, the suppliers of the Group
are mainly raw materials (mainly fabrics) suppliers and production
equipment suppliers from the PRC, Europe, Cambodia and Hong
Kong.

The Group pays great attention to suppliers’ integrity and conduct
due diligence on suppliers to ensure that suppliers are having good
operational record in the past without any material violation or
any breach of commercial morality. Currently, we mainly rely on
individual suppliers to provide raw materials. Those suppliers have
undergone fair and rigorous supplier selection process, possess
reliable operation records and are able to continuously provide us
materials at a price which are competitive to the Group. Although
these suppliers have good past performance, the Group looks for
appropriate new suppliers regularly for risk control purpose.
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After providing raw materials to the Group, regardless of
whether they are new or old suppliers, the Group will conduct
assessment on suppliers in terms of contract fulfilment according
to internal guidelines and check if our suppliers have fulfilled their
responsibilities under the procurement contracts, provide relevant
information reports timely and ensure that the raw materials
supplied have met the Group's requirements. If any material issue
occurs or exists, the Group will change suppliers.

The Group believes maintaining a good relationship with suppliers
will facilitate corporate development. The Group offers fair
and reasonable contract terms to suppliers when entering into
procurement contracts with them. We firmly refuse depriving
suppliers in any ways for profitability. We will achieve sustainable
development operation pattern under mutual and friendly
cooperation.

Product Liability

The customers of the Group are mainly branded swimwear and
garment enterprises in the European markets. The Group attaches
great importance to products’ quality and reputation, and actively
assures products and services quality through internal control. The
Group has already set up comprehensive internal quality inspection
system to ensure products are meeting the quality requirements.
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BE HERERBRE

The quality inspection system of the Group mainly includes as
follow:

1. Periodic workplace inspection, check documentations
and inspect raw materials quality to ensure they meet
documentation requirements and provide inspection reports;

2. Check production process and ensure technology used is
accurate with sound operation of production equipment;

3. Check whether packaging such as carton boxes, plastic bags
and price tags are correct according to documentations and
ensure meeting customers’ requirements upon delivery;

4. Conduct product quality inspection to ensure that size,
wordings, colour and printing of the finished products
are manufactured exactly according to the customers'
requirements;

5. Itis subject to signatory and stamping by supplier’s executives
after the aforementioned inspection.

The Group requires its staff to observe the above quality inspection
system as well as all other working guidelines to ensure products
meet the quality requirements. Save as guidelines and handbooks,
we also arrange relevant trainings for staff to improve their
professional technological skills from time to time.

The Group maintains and reviews different communication
channels with customers to obtain customer feedback and handle
customer complaints timely, whereby investigation on customer
complaints and services will be conducted and improve our
customer service system.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all the
laws and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labeling and privacy matters in respect of the products and services
provided, which had a significant impact on the Group, nor suffered
any loss of customer arising from products problems.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group strictly complies with applicable anti-corruption laws
and moral standards. During the Reporting Period, there was no
case of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
lodged against the Group or our employees.

At the entity’s business and capital market operation level, the
Board of Directors of the Group adopts a “zero tolerance” attitude
for corruption and fraudulent acts, which has already been reflected
in our business and staff policies as well as in our operating
procedures. The Group adheres to the philosophy of “integrity and
accountality” and eradicates corruption acts resolutely. The Group
maintains sound corporate governance and risk management to
protect the interests of stakeholders and facilitate our sustainable
development.

Regarding the corporate governance structure of the Group and
other relevant information, please refer to pages 56 to 72 of this
annual report.

The Group has formulated the convention against corruption and
a set of comprehensive anti-corruption and fraudulent mechanism
pinpointing at the whole supply chain from upstream suppliers to
downstream end-customers, as well as the capital market operation
of investors, shareholders and institutions. The Group provides
periodic anti-corruption training and information to employees
to raise their anti-corruption awareness, thereby ensuring
every employee is in compliance with local rules and has good
professional conduct.

The above measures are reinforced by internal independent
audit. We carry out whistle-blowing system to allow anonymous
reporting. If any corruption or fraud event is discovered, we will
conduct immediate investigation and report to the audit committee
and senior management.

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFR

B HEREBHRS

RES

AEEBBETHEREEERBABEE
Ao mEHRE R AHEAEEXETHET
B BR FRFRIARERM-

oo

EREBREAMSREER AEENE
ZERE S NFERITAER I ZTRRIEE I
ERBRREPINEBEERE THR ARE
LRFF - AKERET [BEER]NEESR
BAMBEMNERTR AEEEBRITRIF
MEEEARERER  NEERHENNE
AR EER

BFEAEBRCEEREBRAMEBEER &
R AR FRES6HEFE72H o

AEBEEHITRBRANE—ETENREFTR
FEERMES SHER EBRHERE T HRRER
MR IREER AR mEHIREE R LB
BEAMGEE - ARETEHRABE TREABK
BSHIBIIRER EIMETHRERE  HEIR
FIBEETHETEXEMAER WEERIED
BEET-o

FR R SR B B AL TG N - B
PRSI - AHE SRR BRI
B SHREL  RPR M RTES  YHE
BEEERBREREER-

oz1



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE HERERBRE

During the Reporting Period, we had not identified any illegal
event involving in corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, which had a significant impact on the Group. The
Group will review the implementation of respective systems
periodically and devote more resources to improve the mechanism
if necessary.

Community

The Group places importance on social responsibility of an
enterprise, upholds the philosophy of “giving back to society where
we take from”, and encourages employees’ awareness of caring for
the community and helping each other.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively repays to society,
and participates in various community activities such as flag-
selling day and also provides leave for voluntary services. We hope
to raise employees’ community awareness through organising
or participating in such kind of community activities to let them
contributing back the community practically, promote their care
and help the needed. We also encourage employees to share
proactively after the activities, influence others to participate more
volunteer activities and establish proper values.

The Group will continue to cooperate with more organisations
and institutions and offer them more support to make greater
contributions to the society.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES AND WARRANTS

On 18 May 2015, (i) the Board of Directors (the “Board”) proposed
a bonus share issue to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of
four bonus shares for every one existing share held on 3 July 2015
(the "Record Date”); and (ii) the Board also proposed the bonus
warrant issue to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of one
warrant for every one existing share held on the Record Date.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 June 2015, a bonus share
was issued to shareholders on the basis of four bonus shares for
every one existing share held on the Record Date. The bonus shares
were credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of an
amount equal to the total par value of bonus shares standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company. On the same
day, another ordinary resolution passed for an issuance of bonus
warrant to shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every one
existing share held on the Record Date. Each warrant entitled the
holder to subscribe in cash for one share at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, on the date falling 12 months
from the date of issuance of the warrants (the “Warrants”).
Issuance of bonus shares and bonus warrants were completed on
13 July 2015. On 28 July 2016, an aggregate of 4,978,523 ordinary
shares were issued as a result of the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to 4,978,523 Warrants. The subscription rights
attaching to the remaining 981,380,235 Warrants expired on 12
July 2016. The premium on the issue of shares, amounting to
approximately HK$846,000 was credited to the Company'’s share
premium account.

Pursuant to the terms of convertible non-voting preference shares
("CPS") and Series B convertible non-voting preference shares
("Series B CPS™), the conversion price of the outstanding CPS and
Series B CPS were adjusted from HK$0.65 per share to HK$0.13 per
share and HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.032 per share respectively as
a result of the bonus share issue. The said adjustments took effect
immediately after 3 July 2015. No adjustment was required to be
made as a result of the Warrants issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Details of the transaction is set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 May 2015, 24 June 2015, 25 June 2015, 3
July 2015, 9 July 2015 and 1 June 2016 and circulars dated 5 June
2015 and 3 June 2016.

PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER
SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 18 July 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to procure not less than six placees to purchase up to 300,000,000
shares at placing price of HK$0.10 per share (the “Placing”). On the
same date, the Company and JL Investments Capital Limited (the
“Subscriber”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Subscriber
agreed to subscribe for and the Company agreed to allot and
issue an aggregate of 300,000,000 shares at subscription price of
HK$0.10 per share (the “Subscription”).

The Placing and Subscription were approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7
September 2016. The Placing and Subscription were completed
and shares were issued on 14 October 2016. The premium on
the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$52,813,000,
net of share issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s share
premium account. The shares will rank pari passu in all respects
with the ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the date of
allotment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the terms of CPS and Series B CPS, the conversion
price of the outstanding CPS and Series B CPS were adjusted from
HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.12 per share and HK$0.032 per share
to HK$0.030 per share respectively as a result of the Placing and
Subscription. The said adjustments took effect immediately after 15
July 2016.

Please refer to announcements of the Company dated 18 July
2016, 8 August 2016, 22 August 2016 and 7 September 2016 and
14 October 2016 and circular dated 22 August 2016 for details.

DEREGISTRATION OF CHARMSTON (HOLDINGS)
LIMITED

On 28 June 2017, a resolution was passed by the shareholders
of Charmston (Holdings) Limited (“Charmston”) to cease its
operations and deregister the company. The Group holds 13%
equity interests in Charmston and is classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. The investment in Charmston was thus
considered as non-recoverable and an impairment of approximately
HK$2,998,000 was made against the available-for-sale financial
assets during the year ended 30 June 2017. It is the Directors’
opinion that the deregistration of Charmston will not have a
material impact on the Group's result of operations and financial
position. The deregistration process is yet to complete at the date
of the Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 (the “Year”), loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$46,075,000.
Comparing to loss attributable to owners of the Company for
year ended 30 June 2016 of approximately HK$47,251,000, the
decrease in loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
mainly attributable to decrease of impairment of goodwill to
approximately HK$23,000,000 (2016: HK$37,900,000) made for
garment and swimwear cash-generating unit (2016: swimwear
cash-generating unit) and partially set off by (i) decrease in gross
profit to approximately HK$556,000 (2016: HK$5,848,000); (ii)
impairment of available-for-sale financial assets of approximately
HK$2,998,000 (2016: HK$Nil) was made during the Year; (iii)
decrease of other income to approximately HK$4,326,000 (2016:
HK$8,848,000); (iv) increase in selling expenses to approximately
HK$6,541,000 (2016: HK$782,000), mainly for sale of swimwear
and garment products in the Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”);
and (v) increase in finance costs to approximately HK$976,000
(2016: HK$525,000).

Revenue and Gross Profit

For the Year, the Group's total revenue and gross profit were
approximately HK$152,696,000 and HK$556,000 respectively, as
comparing to approximately HK$139,981,000 and HK5,848,000
respectively for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Details of the increase in total revenue but decrease in gross profit
are discussed below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and
garment products (“Swimwear and garment segment”)

The revenue generated from Swimwear and garment segment
for the Year was approximately HK$152,073,000 (2016:
HK$136,981,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$550,000 (2016: HK$3,147,000). Gross profit ratio for the Year
was 0.36% (2016: 2.30%). Increase in revenue was mainly due
to the increase in garment products orders of lower gross profit
margin in Ricotex Industrial Company Limited (“Ricotex”) with
its factories located in Cambodia. However, it was offset by the
decrease in revenue for high-end swimwear products as the orders
for high-end swimwear products has substantially dropped. These
customers were affected by the economic downturn of European
market and the effect of the withdrawal of the United Kingdom
from the European Union. Decrease in gross profit for the Year was
mainly due to (i) substantially decrease in orders, together with drop
of gross profit margin as compared with the corresponding period
in 2016, for high-end swimwear products; (ii) continuous increase
in portion of garment products of lower gross profit margin; and
(iii) increase in factory overhead for the expansion in Cambodia of
which the operation had not been fully utilised during the Year.

Trading and provision of media related services (“Trading and
media related segment”)

The revenue generated from Trading and media related segment for
the Year was approximately HK$623,000 (2016: HK$3,000,000).
Gross profit for the Year was approximately HK$6,000 (2016:
HK$2,701,000). Gross profit ratio for the Year was 0.96% (2016:
90.03%). The decrease of revenue and gross profit was due to the
revenue for this segment was generated from trading of second-
hand mobile phones which was just started in June 2017. The
revenue and gross profit generated for the year ended 30 June
2016 represented provision of information technology services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Impairment of Goodwill

For the Year, impairment of goodwill was approximately
HK$23,000,000, comparing to approximately HK$37,900,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2016.

(i) The impairment of goodwill relates to the swimwear
cash-generating unit (“Swimwear CGU")

No impairment of goodwill relates to Swimwear CGU was
made for the Year (2016: HK$37,900,000).

The recoverable amount of the Swimwear CGU is determined
from value in use calculation (2016: value in use calculation).
The key assumptions are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and budgeted gross margin and revenue during
the period. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth
rate is based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the business of the CGU
operates. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

During the Year, the Group prepares cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the Directors for the next five (2016: five) years with residual
period using the growth rate of 3.00% (2016: 3.99%). This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows from the Group’s activities of manufacturing and
trading of high-end swimwear and related garment products
is 15.00% (2016: 14.57%). No impairment of goodwill
related to Swimwear CGU was made during the Year (2016:
HK37,900,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(i) The impairment of goodwill relates to garment

and swimwear cash-generating unit (“Garment and
swimwear CGU”)

An impairment of goodwill relates to Garment and swimwear
CGU of approximately HK$23,000,000 (2016: HK$Nil) was
made for the Year.

The recoverable amount of the Garment and swimwear CGU
is determined from value in use calculation (2016: value in
use calculation). The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the business of the CGU operates. Budgeted
gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

During the Year, the Group prepares cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the Directors for the next five (2016: five) years with residual
period using the growth rate of 3.00% (2016: 3.99%). This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows from the Group’s activities of manufacturing and
trading of garment and swimwear is 14.60% (2016: 14.60%).

Due to the unsatisfactory performance and the uncertainties
arising from its possible restructuring, the Group has revised
its cash flow forecasts for this CGU for the nine months
ended 31 March 2017. The recoverable amount of this CGU
is approximately HK$105,000,000 as at 31 March 2017,
which is lower than the carrying amount of this CGU. The
goodwill has therefore been reduced to its recoverable amount
through recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of
approximately HK$23,000,000 during the nine months ended
31 March 2017 and the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

On 28 June 2017, a resolution was passed by the shareholders
of Charmston to cease its operations and apply for deregistration
of the company. The Group holds 13% equity interests in
Charmston and is classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
As Charmston was in net liabilities position, the investment thus
considered as non-recoverable and an impairment of approximately
HK$2,998,000 was made against the available-for-sale financial
assets during the Year.

OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group maintained an effective cost measures
in controlling the cost structure of its operations. Besides, the
Group will be extremely prudent in the expansion of its operations
in an organic manner. We also believe that it is of the Group's best
interest to explore different sources of income while still maintains
an effective and efficient overhead structure for our supporting
departments in each of the business segments under operation.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$231,224,000 (2016: HK$220,495,000). As at 30 June
2017, the Group had short term borrowings of approximately
HK$30,000,000 (2016: HK$19,500,000). The increase of total
borrowings was mainly due to the further borrowing from a non-
controlling shareholder of Ricotex during the Year. As at 30 June
2017, the Group had bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$71,092,000 (2016: HK$48,556,000). The Group has a current
ratio of approximately 1.96 comparing to that of 1.32 as at 30 June
2016. As at 30 June 2017, the Group's gearing ratio of -4% (2016:
11%) was calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total liabilities (including current and non-current
liabilities as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the
equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

030

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2017

AHEESREERE

RZE—+tEAAZTN\B HH2RERBE
—HRBRUALIEEEBRBEFTHEAA A
EEFEAF 2 13%RERESBEETHES
TREE BHNEFENFAERR  ZIRER
AR AT RE MAFERTHREESH
& EEH R EE%2,998,0007T ©

£

RAFE NREBREHERERAREST T
AR B IR R A UK A B B o AN AEE RN IAE
RERSTAMRERB T AFHEERERE -
AREBNRR SRR ZWARIR - B EAR
SEFMEECEEB DB IRBARFEX
KREYEZARE HTEAREE 2 &ER

o

B

RBEETRMBER

RZZE—tFAAA=Z+TH AEBZEER
B4 575 8231,224,0000T (ZF—NF: 5K
220,495,0007T) cR=B—+FEXA=+H K
E B %A R BEE 4 %30,000,0007T (=F
— 7N B%19,500,0007T ) © & B 42%8 2 # N
DEZHRAFEARBFREFZRRER
E—HEERR - R_T—+FXA=1+H" K
SEZRITRBEEEFHAERT1,092,0007T
— T N4 5%48,556,0007T) - NEE 2R
B ERL A1 MR ZFE—~FEA=+H
MENLL KB A132 RZE—tFA=1
H - ZBEFEGRNESAETE AEEZE
REBBHERAEA% (ZT—RF:11%) -BfE
FEEZEBRE (RREAGMBARRATZ
nBRERBEE)RAEERBESEMEIELRF
B RRnBEARAEUBRARAM T 2R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Placing and Subscription were completed and shares were
issued on 14 October 2016. The premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$52,813,000, net of share issue
expenses, was credited to the Company’s share premium account.
The Company planned to apply the net proceeds from the Placing
and Subscription as to (i) up to approximately HK$31,000,000
for expansion of the Group’s swimwear and garment production
facilities in Cambodia; (ii) up to approximately HK$20,000,000
for general working capital for the Group’s existing principal
business; and (iii) the balance for future investment opportunities.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$23,500,000 have been
utilised by the Group as to (i) approximately HK$7,500,000 for
expansion of the Group’s swimwear and garment production in
Cambodia including additional labour force for second production
plant and purchase of raw materials for the expanded capacity; (ii)
approximately HK$6,000,000 for purchase of raw materials for its
existing swimwear and garment business; and (iii) approximately
HK$10,000,000 for salaries, professional fees and other
administrative expenses for Group's existing principal business. The
remaining unutilised net proceeds are held in banks for future use
as intended.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not conducted any
equity fund raising activities during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group'’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to our Group or which
may not be material now but could be material in the future:

1. Reliance on a small number of key suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers, which accounted for 49%
(2016: 68%) of the Group's total purchase, are mainly related
to the purchase of fabric. There is no assurance that these
major suppliers shall continue to provide the fabric to us at
price acceptable to our Group. In the event that our Group
were unable to retain these suppliers, or procure replacement
suppliers, our business, results of operations, profitability and
liquidity might be adversely affected. However, the Group
has established strong business relationship with these major
suppliers.

2. Reliance on a small number of key customers

The Group's five largest customers, which accounted for
87% (2016: 70%) of the Group’s total revenue. There is no
assurance that major customers will continue to conduct
business with us. In the event that major customers materially
reduce their purchase orders with the Group or cease to
conduct business with the Group and the Group fails to obtain
a comparable level of purchase orders from new customers,
the Group's business, result of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected. Customer satisfaction
with our products has a profound effects on our profitability.
To provide good quality services to our customers, our Group is
in constant communication with our customers and potential
customers to uncover and create customer needs and help
customers make informed decision.

032 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2017

FTERBRTHAEE

AREEZ MBI EEREREHRRA B
XPEAEBRBEZXE AR 2 ZHEAR
RTABERZE - AT RAEEBRNH 2 E
2R N TAAARESE BRI XHIIEIN REF
EARSEWLARMEXBATAIETERERRA
EEBEAZ HibRER N T HARE:

1. BELPBEEHRER

REB s AREER (hASBEHEE
249% (ZZE—"F :168%) ) F B MK
FREEE B TNREBEZE T EHEREISE
BEASEEEZEZ ZERARMRERR-
MASEEEEZEZSHEREFSERE
SREMHERS  MRMER S8RE .
BRENERBESKEIETFTE-
A AEBEEEZSZFTEHEEELE
EEEEER-

2. BELBEEEF

AEBZRARABEFPERAEEBRAELZ
87% (ZE—NF:70% ) - T REFEEXE
BEPBEBHEEMETEE - WMEERP
ANIEBRE S HANEE 2 BT B a1k
HASEETER MASEEZIRANE
PEGHEEKFEZHEEIE AXERZ
X% EEFBERTBR RS EZETF
HE - BPHRMERMZWEESH M
BHNENBEIREXE - RARFPIRHESR
fRT%  AEBHEEF RETR S TENER -
PAZEIR R AE R P BRI BN E P EH &0
TBRE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3. Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group business transactions, assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, of which the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is considered as limited. During the Year, the
Group did not carry out any hedging activity against foreign
currency risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of
foreign currencies against Renminbi may have a financial
impact on the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging
tools, if available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

4. Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of our
Group would be submitted to the Board.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 June 2015, 3,945,435,032
bonus shares were issued to shareholders on the basis of four
bonus shares for every one existing share held on the Record Date.
The bonus shares were credited as fully paid at par by way of
capitalisation of an amount equal to the total par value of bonus
shares standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company. On the same day, another ordinary resolution passed for
an issuance of bonus warrant to shareholders on the basis of one
warrant for every one existing share held on the Record Date. Each
warrant entitled the holder to subscribe in cash for one share at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, on the date
falling 12 months from the date of issues of the warrant. Issuance
of bonus shares and bonus warrant were completed on 13 July
2015. Subsequently, 4,978,523 ordinary shares were issued from
the exercise of bonus warrants on 28 July 2016. The proceeds from
the exercise of warrants in the sum of approximately HK$896,000
has been used as administrative expenses of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Subsequent to the issuance of bonus share, the conversion price of
the outstanding CPS had been adjusted from HK$0.65 per share to
HK$0.13 per share; and the conversion price of 312,500,000 Series
B CPS had been adjusted from HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.032 per
share. These said adjustments took effect immediately after 3 July
2015. No adjustment was required to make as a result of the bonus
warrant issue for both CPS and Series B CPS.

On 18 July 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to procure not less than six placees to purchase up to 300,000,000
shares at placing price of HK$0.10 per share. On the same date, the
Company and Subscriber, entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for and the
Company agreed to allot and issue an aggregate of 300,000,000
shares at subscription price of HK$0.10 per share.

The Placing and Subscription were approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7
September 2016. The Placing and Subscription were completed
and shares were issued on 14 October 2016. The premium on
the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$52,813,000,
net of share issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s share
premium account. The shares will rank pari passu in all respects
with the ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the date of
allotment.

Pursuant to the terms of CPS and Series B CPS, the conversion
price of the outstanding CPS and Series B CPS were adjusted from
HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.12 per share and HK$0.032 per share
to HK$0.030 per share respectively as a result of the Placing and
Subscription. The said adjustments took effect immediately after 15
July 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2017, issued and fully paid share capital of the
Company included (a) 5,703,772,313 (2016: 5,098,793,790)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each; (b) 1,103,333,333 CPS (2016:
1,103,333,333) of HK$0.15 each; and (c) 279,100,000 (2016:
279,100,000) Series B CPS of HK$0.16 each. Pursuant to the
terms of the CPS and Series B CPS, the conversion prices of the
outstanding CPS and Series B CPS were adjusted from HK$0.65
and HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.13 and HK$0.032 per share
respectively as a result of completion of the rights issue, and further
adjusted to HK$0.12 and HK$0.030 per share respectively as a
result of completion of the Placing and Subscription.

HEDGING POLICY

The Group does not have any material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange or interest rates. Therefore, no hedging measures have
been taken at present.

CREDIT POLICY

The credit terms given to customers are generally based on the
financial strengths of individual customers. The Group generally
allows an average credit term of 14 to 90 days to its trade
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had 1,427 full time employees
compared with that of 2,124 in the previous financial year. The
staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were approximately
HK$67,919,000 (2016: HK$58,672,000). The Group offers a
comprehensive remuneration package and benefits to its full time
employees in compliance with the regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the Cambodia respectively, including medical scheme,
provident fund or retirement fund. In addition, the Group adopts
a share option scheme for eligible employees (including Directors)
and consultants to provide incentives to participants for their
contributions and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group has pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$5,560,000 (2016: HK$613,000) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PROSPECT

For the Swimwear and garment segment, due to the recent
economic downturn of European market and effect of the
withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union, the
orders for high-end swimwear for the factory located in the PRC
continuously decrease in current year and the coming years. In
order to seek new business opportunities, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Ricotex, has established and is operating a factory in
the Cambodia to manufacture Swimwear and garment products.
Due to the import tariff tax benefit offer to European customers,
the operation in Ricotex can attract more European customers and
therefore Ricotex can stimulate and increase revenue for swimwear
and garment segment in the future. Furthermore, in order to
diversify our products, we are developing new products other than
swimwear with our new/existing business partners during the Year,
and we expect there would be new orders received in coming years.
Also, our Group continues to closely monitor and control cost in
order to push up the gross profit margin of Swimwear and garment
segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to diversify our business, (i) the Group launched trading of
second-hand mobile phone business by a subsidiary of the Group,
Luxey Online Solutions Limited, in June 2017; and (ii) the Group
explored to another new business segment, the money lending
business, of which the Group has obtained a Money Lenders
Licence in July 2017 and started a new business of money lending
since then.

For the Trading and media related segment, it represented provision
of information technology services to customer last year. During
the Year, provision of information technology services ceased but
on the other hand the Group started a new business for trading of
second-hand mobile phone business. Our Group will continue to
seek and explore other business opportunity for the Trading and
media related segment.

The management of the Group continues to formulate its business
strategies to optimise the use of its operating and financial
resources. It will consider to diversify its operations including but
not limited to invest in financial instruments in order to ensure
cash availability through managing cash on hand to best meet the
Group's cash and liquidity needs to manage risk. It will also consider
to reorganise the non-performing business segments including but
not limited to the disposal or downsizing of the non-performing
business segments.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s operations and assets are located in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China and the Kingdom of Cambodia.
An analysis of the Group's performance for the Year by business
segments and consolidated revenue and non-current assets of the
Group by geographical segments are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 82 to 83 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2016:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review of the Group for the Year is provided in the

section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 183 and
184 of the annual report.

SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of share issued during the Year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTIVE RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in note 31(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity respectively.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise the
share premium account, less accumulated losses.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There are no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed
securities by the Group during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Pledge of assets and particulars of borrowings of the Group as at
30 June 2017 are set out in notes 25 and 27 to the consolidated

financial statements.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the warrants subscription, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
Year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George and Mr.
Fung Chan Man, Alex shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. All
the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the Annual General Meeting.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the changes
in information of Directors of the Company subsequent to the
date of the 2016 Annual Report required to be disclosed were (i)
the updated biographic details of the Directors set out on pages
6 to 8 of the annual report; and (ii) Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex,
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of On Real
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with effective 31 July 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) confirmed that the Company
has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that
they are independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Save for contracts amongst group companies, no other
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which
the Company'’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company and the Director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2017, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the share capital, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standards of dealings by Directors of the
Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of Nature of Type of issued share
Name of Director shares interest Interest capital (%)
HEBRTRE
EspnE igvig 4= ERME EHEER BRBE DL (%)
(Note 2)
(fi7z2)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph  1,479,841,995 Interest of a controlled Corporate 25.94%
(Note 1) corporation
fREgEE 1,479,841,995  XAFHI QAR NC]
(Htat1)
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Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 63,100,000 shares by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen,
Joseph personally and as to 1,416,741,995 shares by JL Investments
Capital Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by JL Investments Capital Limited.

2. The percentage of issued share capital had been arrived at on the
basis of a total of 5,703,772,313 ordinary shares in issue as at 30
June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age had any right to subscribe for the
Shares or any share of its associated corporations.

(ii) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

As at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors had short positions
in shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2017, other than the interests of a Director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading
“Directors” and chief executive's interests and/or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any specified undertaking of the Company or any other associated
corporation” above, the interests and short positions of persons in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares
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Approximate
percentage of

Type of issued share
Name of shareholder Number of shares interests capital (%)
HEBITRAE
BRRES BB ROEEB ERER BRBE DL (%)
(Note 2)
(Htet2)
Big Good Management Limited 950,533,845 Beneficial 16.67%
("Big Good")
Big Good Management Limited 950,533,845 BEn
(IBig Good )
Mr. Ma Hoi Cheuk (“Mr. Ma") 950,533,845 Corporate 16.67%
(Note 1)
BIEkE([HEE]) 950,533,845 A7)
(Bfet1)
Notes: Biat -

1. Big Good is wholly-owned by Mr. Ma who is deemed to be
interested in underlying shares held by Big Good.

2. see Note 2 on page 44.
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Name of shareholder

BRER®EE LB

Big Good

Big Good

Mr. Ma

SEE

Notes:

[

046

see Note 2 on page 44.

see Note 1 on page 45.

Number of shares

KB E

2,817,699,999
(Note 3 & 4)
2,817,699,999
(Ki:i3%4)

2,817,699,999
(Note 2, 3 & 4)
2,817,699,999
(Ht:E2 ~3/%4)

Big Good was the holder of 1,063,333,333 convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.15 each which have no voting rights and

are convertible into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the terms of the

convertible non-voting preference shares, the conversion price of

the outstanding convertible non-voting preference shares has been

adjusted from HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.12 per share immediately

after 15 July 2016 as a result of completion of the subscription and

placing on 14 October 2016.
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4. Big Good was also the holder of 279,100,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each which have no voting
rights and are convertible into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the
terms of the series B convertible non-voting preference shares, the
conversion price of the outstanding series B convertible non-voting
preference shares had been adjusted from HK$0.032 to HK$0.030
per share immediately after 15 July 2016 as a result of completion of
the subscription and placing on 14 October 2016.

(iii) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions” below in this
Director’s Report, there was no contract of significant between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiary during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following connected transactions

during the Year and up to the date of this report:

(i)

048

During the Year, Ricotex Industrial Company Limited
(“Ricotex”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into (i) the supply agreement with Dakota Industrial
Company Limited (“Dakota”) pursuant to which Dakota has
agreed to supply raw materials to Ricotex; and (ii) the sales
agreement pursuant to which Ricotex has agreed to sell
products to Dakota.

During the Year, (i) Dakota has not supplied any raw materials
to Ricotex; and (ii) Ricotex sold products to Dakota totally
approximately HK$106,947,000.

The approximate aggregate value and the annual caps of each
category of the continuing connected transactions are set out

below:

Category

5l

i) Dakota supplied raw materials to Ricotex
i) 18 5 12 () | i S 41 B SR AR
i) Ricotex sold products to Dakota

(
(
(
(i) M EREmEHEER
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Billions Field Development Limited (“Billions Field”), is a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level
by holding 50% of the issued share capital in Ricotex; all
shareholders of Dakota are family members of each other.
The maijority shareholders of Dakota and their immediately
family member are also majority shareholders of Billions
Field. Hence, Dakota is an associate of Billions Field through
common shareholders and is also a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level. Therefore the transactions
under the supply agreement and sales agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company who confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions stated in paragraphs
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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(ii)

On 18 July 2016, the Company and JL Investments Capital
Limited (the “Subscriber”), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for
and the Company agreed to allot and issue an aggregate
of 300,000,000 shares at subscription price of HK$0.10 per
share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 7 September 2016 and was completed
on 14 October 2016. Please refer to announcements of the
Company dated 18 July 2016, 8 August 2016, 22 August
2016, 7 September 2016 and 14 October 2016 and circular
dated 22 August 2016 for details.

The Subscriber is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, chairman, executive Director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Subscriber and Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph together hold 1,179,841,995 shares
representing approximately 23.12% of the Company’s total
issued share capital as at the day of announcement. Hence, the
Subscriber is a connected person of the Company. Therefore
the Subscription constituted connected transaction of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year and up to the date of

this report, no connected transactions were entered into between

the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a connected person as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the

Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public

throughout the Year and up to the date of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is
as follows:

The largest customer SN

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFER
The largest supplier BAEER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHERSE

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their respective
associates and any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
staff, and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
business and creating a sustainable return to the Group.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety are the most pressing concern across our business
operations. The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group.
The Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staffs to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community in order
to provide loving care and financial assistance to the needy.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior management
are delegated with the continuing responsibility to monitor
adherence and compliance with all significant legal and regulatory
requirements.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees is one of the key stakeholders who affected the
sustainability of our business, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group believes that our people are critical
success factors to the Group’s competitiveness in the market.
As such, the Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Share options are provided to retain
loyal employees for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in external
seminars to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of
legal, compliance and financial accounting and reporting. Through
these types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced. The Company also
encourages continuous professional development training for the
Directors and senior management to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars and training, updates
on regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against

liability incurred by the Directors and officers of the Company is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of, as at 30 June 2017, any business or
interest of each Director, substantial shareholder and management
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance for the Company. During the Year, the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph,
the chairman of the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") since the position became vacant on 30 June 2014,
and thus there has been no segregation of duties during the Year.
The Board has evaluated the current situation of the Group and
taken into account of the experience and past performance of Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was
appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution
of the Group’s business strategies and maximises the effectiveness
of its operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles
at the appropriate time.
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Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at Annual General Meeting of the Company in line with the
Company's Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Messrs. RSM Hong Kong. A resolution will be submitted

to the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint RSM Hong Kong as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 September 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance for the Company. During
the year ended 30 June 2017 (the “Year”), the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) except provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph,
the chairman of the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") since the position became vacant on 30 June 2014,
and thus there has been no segregation of duties during the Year.
The Board has evaluated the current situation of the Group and
taken into account of the experience and past performance of Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was
appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution
of the Group’s business strategies and maximises the effectiveness
of its operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles
at the appropriate time.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company in
line with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure the Company’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performances. Daily operations and execution are delegated
to management. The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees;

(d) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Independent
Non-executive Directors provide the Group with a wide range of
expertise and experience, to ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in an
objective manner.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs. The Board believes that the balance between Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide checks and balances that safeqguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors act in the best interest of the
Company and that the current Board size is adequate for its present
operations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board comprises five members and their positions, as at the
date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management's
Biographies” on pages 6 to 8 of the annual report for the Year.
All Directors have exercised due care, skill and diligence and
fulfilled fiduciary duties to all the significant issues of the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Each Executive
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to hold
his position in order to ensure that his fiduciary duties have been
carried out in an efficient and effective manner. Save as disclosed,
none of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to
each other in any circumstances.
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The Board meets at least four times each year and more frequently
as the needs of the business demand. The Board held 22 board
meetings and 2 general meetings for the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Board members are as follows:
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REBFBWT

Attendance
H X8
Board General
meetings meetings
Executive Directors BITES EZEE3 BREXE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph RBREE 19/22 2/2
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George LS 19/22 12
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkBTES
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL 12/22 172
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B EA 11/22 212
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex IS S 12/22 12

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all
Directors for inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and approved as soon as practicable
after the board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing Directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nomination
Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used
in board meetings for committee meetings.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities insurance cover in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional
development programme to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company. During the Year, the Company arranged
training on compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, to the Directors
and senior management for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. The
Company Secretary maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year are

as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BB ESE

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George DR E
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHITESE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXIET

Mr. Tam Wing Kin BRI E A

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SR e
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In order to protect the interest of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), the Company appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors with relevant and sufficient experience and
qualification to perform their duties. One of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise,
which complies with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.
During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules of 5.06 relating to have at least one-third
in number of its Board members comprising Independent Non-
executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive Directors
declared and confirmed with the Company on an annual basis of
their independency with the Group in accordance with Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed and concluded
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in appearance and in substance in view of the definition of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive Directors do not
hold any office with any connected parties of the Company or have
any financial interests other than those Directors’ remuneration as
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the chairman of the Company, took
up the role of CEO since 30 June 2014, and thus there is no
segregation of duties during the Year. The Board has evaluated
the current situation of the Group and taken into account of the
experience and past performance of Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the
Board was of the opinion that it was appropriate and in the best
interest of the Company at the present stage for vesting the roles
of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company in the same person
as it helps to facilitates the execution of the Group's business
strategies and maximises the effectiveness of its operation. The
Board will nevertheless review this structure from time to time and
will consider the segregation of the two roles at the appropriate
time.
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The Chairman of the Company has held one private meeting with
all Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss major events or
issues which incurred during the Year and the Company's business
plan to be developed in the coming year. The Board believed that
Independent Non-executive Directors could through this private
meeting voice out their concerns on financial aspect after discussed
major events or issues and provided constructive advice on the
direction of the Company’s future development.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT

The procedures of appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors are published in the Articles of the Company. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose any person to become a
Director of the Company are published on the Company’s website.

Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms, subject to re-election. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George and
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex shall retire at the AGM. All the retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
Year.

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the code of conduct by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Compensation Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Compensation Committee comprises a majority
members of Independent Non-executive Directors.

At 30 June 2017, the Compensation Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John,
Mr. Tam Wing Kin, Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Compensation Committee proposed to the Chairman relating
to the remuneration of Executive Directors. The Compensation
Committee also recommended to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Director’s fee payable to him is determined by making reference
to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market conditions, as approved by the Board in accordance with
the Company’s remuneration policy pursuant to the authority given
by the Shareholders. No Director has taken part in setting his own
remuneration. Meetings of the Compensation Committee shall be
held at least once a year.

The Compensation Committee held 1 meeting during the Year.
Details of the attendance of the Compensation Committee
meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph AERrREE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKIELT
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B EA
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex R e A

During the Year, there was one meeting held by the Compensation
Committee to review the Group’s term of reference for the
Compensation Committee and review all Directors’ Remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members of
senior management by band for the Year are disclosed in notes
14(b) and 15(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee in
2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations, appointment
of Directors and Board succession. The Nomination Committee
selects candidates for directorship with reference to the board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) and the candidate’s professional
knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics and integrity, and
time commitments. During the selection process, the Nomination
Committee may consider referrals or engage external recruitments
professionals when necessary.

The Board has adopted a Policy in August 2013 which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. In designing the Board'’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of this Policy and will from time to time review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee comprises at least three members, the
majority of whom shall be Independent Non-executive Directors.
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is
the Chairman of the Committee. Meetings of the Nomination
Committee shall be held at least once a year.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting is as

follows:

Committee members ZEEREB
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph EEREE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXELT
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex RSB o

During the Year, there was one meeting held by the Nomination
Committee to review the size and composition of the Board and the
Group's term of reference for the Nomination Committee.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a Finance Committee with written terms
of reference to review and approve banking facilities to be granted
or issued by the Company, provision of corporate guarantees by
the Company for its subsidiaries and opening of bank or securities
related accounts. The Finance Committee comprises at least three
members. The current members of the Finance Committee are Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Finance Committee held 2 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Finance Committee meeting is as follows:

Committee members ZE8RE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BB E S &
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BEREE A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex it 3 i

During the Year, there were two meetings held by the Finance
Committee to review and approve the banking facilities of the
Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee is to communicate with the management
of the Company from time to time, including but not limited to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company, the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Company. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for considering the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and reviewing
the impairment to its independency with any non-audit services
performed by the external auditor.

As at the date of this report, the members of Audit Committee,
which are all Independent Non-executive Directors, are Dr. Lee
Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man,
Alex. Mr. Tam Wing Kin is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEEgKE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXELT
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BN o

During the Year, there were six meetings held by the Audit
Committee (i) to review the Company's audited annual results for
the financial year ended 30 June 2016, unaudited first quarterly
results for the three months ended 30 September 2016, unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2016 and
unaudited third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
March 2017; (ii) to review the Group's internal control system;
and (iii) to review the Group’s term of reference for the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the Company'’s external auditor is
set out below:
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HK$°000
BT T
Types of services AR 75 1E 4R
Audit services EZHRT% 850
Taxation fee 5 & A 66
Non-audit services IEEZ AR 210
Total st 1,126
COMPANY SECRETARY ARIME

The Company Secretary has been a full time employee who has
knowledge of the Company’s affair. The Company Secretary of the
Company is Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, who is engaged and appointed by
the Board on 3 August 2011. For the Year, the Company Secretary
of the Company confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group's performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 and 81.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk

management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.
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The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle all significant risks associated with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.

The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each risk has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

e  Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

e Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

e Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are design to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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During the Year, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm
to undertake the internal audit function to ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group. No significant deficiency and weakness on the
internal control system has been identified by the external advisory
firm for the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company'’s Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for put forward a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
resolutions at general meetings under the Company’s Articles or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. As regard to the procedure
for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures made available under the “Corporate Information”
section (Procedures to propose director) of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board in

writing though the Company Secretary of the Company'’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Address: Unit B, 5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building,
1 Wing Ming Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2520 6020

Fax: (852) 2520 6086

Email: admin@luxey.com.hk

The Company Secretary of the Company shall forward the
Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board, where appropriate to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information
to Shareholders in a timely manner. The Company also recognises
that people other than Shareholders, such as potential investors
and the investment community generally may have an interest in
information about the Company. Annual, quarterly and interim
reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance
information to Shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event and all Directors,
senior management and external auditor make an effort to attend
the AGM of the Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the
Shareholders are given a minimum of 20 clear days and minimum
of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the AGM
of the Company. The Company supports the CG Code's principle
to encourage Shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under
the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll included in circulars
to Shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by
the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions
proposed at general meeting are voted separately. The results of the
poll was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Company has maintained a corporate website
(www.luxey.com.hk) as a channel to promote effective corporate
communication with the investors and the general public. The
website is used to disseminate Company announcements, circulars,
Shareholder information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information in an electronic format on a timely basis.

The Shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly to
ensure effectiveness and compliance with the current regulatory
and other requirements.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LUXEY INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 182, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter we identified is the impairment
assessment of goodwill.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB ZRE G

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

2EEAMBHRRMEE20 -

As at 30 June 2017, included in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position was goodwill of
approximately HK$78,064,000 attributable to the
swimwear cash-generating unit (“CGU") and garment
and swimwear CGU. Management is required to test
goodwill for impairment at least annually. The financial
performance of these CGUs deteriorated for the year
ended 30 June 2017, which increases the risk that the
carrying amount of goodwill may be impaired.
R-_ZB—tFAA=1TH" %@5%%78,064,0007_59@%%%
ReEFBEN ([ReEEEML]) RRERXKEREE
AEUEEHMEREE SESENGaMBIRRKRS
EEEBRSFEL AMBEZREETAH  tEFR
PEABUCVBRARBEE_ZE—+FA=1H
IEEFEETE EEHE 2 REEERERER e
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESMMEERRESSE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s impairment
assessment included:
HAAERE O RENAETNRFELE:
—  Assessing the integrity of the value in use models;

- FHEEREERNATEML:

—  Challenging the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

— RERMUEBRITEORR GREEEITE
REREEIRM

— Checking input data to supporting evidence
including approved budgets and considering the
accuracy of management'’s past budgets;

- REBABBIESHEE (BRESHERE)Y
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Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

Management has performed impairment assessment
of goodwill by estimating the value in use of the CGUs
to which the goodwill is allocated. The value in use
calculations required significant management judgement
in respect of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGUs and other economic assumptions such as
discount rates.
ERECBALTE I ERENRCELAEMLNER
BEHBEBETHEN L - EREEAEFTEZAARS
HFEBNEHEAZEARRRSRE REMEER
& (PIABEIR K )M ERE TR E I -

An impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$23,000,000 was recorded during the year to reduce
its carrying amount to its recoverable amount.

REF 15 2 BB R E B 18 4078 %23,000,0007T * A
HERHEERZE A AT E &5 -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANESMAEERRESSE

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rates
adopted by management with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists; and
ERMANABEEERNHE T - sHEEREMIER
RzBBE RN EE: &

Performing sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions on
the value in use calculations.
ETHRES M UG EERR AN A G E
tHEREEFENTE-



Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. \We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 September 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REBEmR

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

Revenue

Cost of sales and service rendered

Gross profit

Other income
Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of available-for-sale

financial assets
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic (cent per share)

Diluted (cent per share)
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Note
B it

20

22

11

12

13

A

2017 2016
—E—+F — T e
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
152,696 139,981
(152,140) (134,133)
556 5,848
4,326 8,848
(23,000) (37,900)
(2,998) =
(6,541) (782)
(23,229) (26,564)
(50,886) (50,550)
(976) (525)
(51,862) (51,075)
521 (478)
(51,341) (51,553)
(46,075) (47,251)
(5,266) (4,302)
(51,341) (51,553)
(0.833) (0.940)
(0.833) (0.940)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeEaRkEME2E KSR

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

ltems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of available-for-
sale financial assets

Reclassification adjustment for
impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets transferred to
profit or loss

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note
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2017 2016
—E-tF —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$000
M TFT EBETT
(51,341) (51,553)
2,954 2,287
(147) (552)
(2,998) =
2,998 —
2,807 1,735
(48,534) (49,818)
(44,107) (45,943)
(4.427) (3,875)
(48,534) (49,818)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR &R

At 30 June 2017 R-FE—+FNA=1+H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Available-for-sale financial assets
Club debenture

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Bank and cash balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Loan from a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary
Employee benefit obligations
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS
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Note
B it

19
20
22

23
24
25
25

26

27
28

29

2017 2016
—E—tF | TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
AETT ERTFT
27,753 30,590
78,064 101,064
- 2,998

50 50
105,867 134,702
4,146 13,285
44,559 23,339
5,560 613
71,092 48,556
125,357 85,793
24,256 33,787
30,000 19,500
4,230 4,650
5,513 6,922
63,999 64,859
61,358 20,934
167,225 155,636
1,146 732
166,079 154,904




CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 September 2017 and are

signed on its behalf by:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B RO &

At 30 June 2017 R-FE—+FNA=+H

BRA K fé 4
ARRHA ANEGER

FEIER s

ERAE

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

gEE

Chairman
FE

2017 2016
—E-tF —T-RF

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Htat BETT BETFIT
30 267,194 261,144
32 (103,338) (112,890)
163,856 148,254

2,223 6,650

166,079 154,904

EFZeX T tFAA-t—HHELAHT

JIBERREE:

Lau Chun Fat, George
21E %
Executive Director

HITEF

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2017 &2 —F—+FNNA=1HILF/E

At1July 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year

Bonus issue (note 201a))

Conversion of series B convertible
non-voting preference shares into
ordinary shares (ote 305))

Deregstration of a subsidiary

Purchase of non-controlling interests

Changes in equity for the year

At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016

Total comprehensive income for the year
Exercise of warrants (note 30/c))
Placing and subscription (note 30@)

Changes in equity for the year

At30 June 2017
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Attributable to owners of the Company

FARERAER
Plant and
machinery Capital Non-
Share Share Translation revaluation redemption  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BERER
Bx kit ERfE Efifif EAWERE 2it R £ FERER BREE
(note 30)  (note 3B} (note S20)f)) (note 2(bJi) (note 32(bfi)
(W) (Weaomh) (W)  (FE0))  (FiEon)
HKS000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000
AETr AEFT BEFT BEFT AEFT BEFT AEFT BEFT AEFT
225,364 612,523 (74) 2,593 150 (645,117) 195439 10833 206,272
- - (552) 1,860 - (47,251) 45,943) (3875) (49,818)
39,454 (39,454) ! . 1 ! - 5 :
(3674) 3,674 - - - = 5 1 a
= E - - - - - 450 450
- - - - - (1242) (1,202) (758) (2,000
35,780 (35,780) (552) 1,860 - (48,493) (47,185) (4,183) (51,368)
261,144 576,743 (626) 4453 150 (693,610) 148,254 6,650 154,904
- - (147) 2115 = (46,075) (44.107) (4427) (48534)
50 846 - - - - 896 - 896
6,000 52813 - - - - 58,813 - 58,813
6,050 53,659 (147) 2,115 - 46,075) 15,602 (4427) 1,175
267,194 630,402 (113) 6,568 150 (739,685) 163,856 223 166,079
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets
Impairment of goodwill
Allowance for receivables
Reversal of allowance for receivables

Operating loss before working capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
other payables
Decrease in provision for employee benefit
obligations

Cash used in operations

Income tax refunded
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTMER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F
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(395) (161)
9,732 7,987

- 450
- (3,120)

2,998 =
23,000 37,900
275 1,283
(1,233) (1,055)
(16,509) (7,266)
9,139 (6,621)
(20,262) (16,203)
(10,327) 14,467
(348) (1,412)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits
Interest received
Purchase of club debenture
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

Proceeds from exercise of warrants

Proceeds from placing and subscription

Share issue expenses paid

Purchase of non-controlling interests

Net cash generated from financing
activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances
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2017 2016
—B—tF | —TXF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(4,947) 28
395 161
- (50)
(3,006) (15,984)
- 3,120
(7,558) (12,725)
10,500 9,500
896 -
60,000 =
(1,187) .
- (2,000)
70,209 7,500
22,945 (22,250)
(409) (967)
48,556 71,773
71,092 48,556
71,092 48,556




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is Unit B,
5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building, 1 Wing Ming Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company's
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

(b)

090

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2016. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 July 2016. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 Ei 2 —F—+F N NA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIIRZETERAYKREEAR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (%)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEERENNITITRLEITE
effective (Continued) BEIEREER (F)
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RUTBEH
LA BATR BY
S HBEX
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of 1 January 2017
Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative
ERGHERETR 2B RERER  BHET2 —T—+F—-—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for 1 January 2017
unrealised losses
ER G ERF12RZEAIMEN  RERBERAELEHRIAEE —T—+tF—H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
EENBRELNFESFEMITE —E-N\F¥—H—B
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
ERVBHRELENFISHREF LKA —_E-\F—H—H
Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretation 22 1 January 2018
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
B8 (ERVBEREZRBEZE ) 2RV H RFANKE = S =

EEER (2R ARAT | —-tFFE 007



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG B

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases
BEAVBHREERE1REE

Hong Kong (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty Over
Income Tax Treatments

BB (HRMBRERBEE®) 237
FRIGT 2 THEE 2 B TE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and HKAS 28

RAFATREETERMBREER

(&

(b) EEMEEREMHTREBTE
B BREER (£)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RUTBEH
LA BAIR Y
SHBEXR

1 January 2019
e A —H

1 January 2019

= — A—H

To be determined

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its associate or joint venture

B HRELANF 1RGN BRRLBL S ERE28R 2 ETRE #E
REBERRREELE REFHEBERASAALEEHEELER
B’A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the
Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts
may be identified in due course.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 Ei 2 —F—+F N NA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIIRZETEAMKEREEAR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (#)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEERENNHITRLEITE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the
classification of financial assets which is based on cash
flow characteristics and the business model in which
the asset is held. A debt instrument that is held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and that has contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding is measured at amortised
cost. A debt instrument that is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting the
contractual cash flows and selling the instruments and
that has contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Equity instruments are
generally measured at fair value through profit or loss.
However, an entity may make an irrevocable election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

094

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities are carried forward largely
unchanged from HKAS 39 except that when the fair
value option is applied changes in fair value attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognised in other
comprehensive income unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment
model to replace the incurred-loss impairment model
in HKAS 39. It is no longer necessary for a credit
event or impairment trigger to have occurred before
impairment losses are recognised. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, an entity will generally recognise
12-month expected credit losses. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
an entity will recognise lifetime expected credit losses.
The standard includes a simplified approach for trade
receivables to always recognise the lifetime expected
credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are carried
forward largely unchanged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIIRZETERAYKREEAR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (#)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEERENNITITRLEITE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge accounting
requirements in HKAS 39 to align hedge accounting
more closely with risk management and establish a more
principle based approach.

The new expected credit loss impairment model in HKFRS
9 may result in the earlier recognition of impairment
losses on the Group's trade receivables and other financial
assets. The Group is unable to quantify the impact until a
more detailed assessment is completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity
recognises revenue to depict the transfer of goods and
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to become
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wRAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EZ =%

— = Fn A= gl

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

096

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core
principle by applying a 5-step model:

Identify the contract with a customer
Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Determine the transaction price

= W N =

Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements and
has not identified any areas that are likely to be affected.

HKFRS 15 also introduces new requirements on
accounting for contract modifications (variations) and
variable consideration (such as claims and incentive
payments) which may impact the timing of revenue
recognition over the contract period.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the new

standard on the consolidated financial statements until a
more detailed analysis is completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2—F—+F N NA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIIRZIETERAMKREEAR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (#)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEERENNHITRLEITE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS
16 carries forward the accounting requirements for
lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors
will therefore continue to classify leases as operating or
financing leases.

The Group's offices, warehouses, director’s quarter and
car parking spaces are currently classified as operating
leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS
16 the Group may need to recognise and measure a
liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense on the
lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset
will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group's assets
and liabilities will increase and the timing of expense
recognition will also be impacted as a result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in note 35, the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for its offices, warehouses, director’s quarter
and car parking spaces amounted to approximately
HK$23,300,000 as at 30 June 2017. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed assessment in order to
determine the new assets and liabilities arising from these
operating leases commitments after taking into account
the transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the effects
of discounting.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. plant and
machinery that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

098 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2017

3.

RAFAIREETERMBREER

(&

(b) EEMEEREMBHTREBTE
B BREER (£)

BEBUBHEERFEI16HHE ()

WM AT TR - R — 57
= F s SO S
EEEAMEEFEEMARTIRELE
HEBETZARKEHERBLOR
23,300,000 B T ANEB K FETE
R UREF REBM B R
HEANF1RAT 2 BELH RITE
LB RETZ SR EHERERE

EZHBERARE.

7

TESFEE

HEFAMBHRREREE LKAER
2 TXEtERERmRE (BRAFER
B2 M as ) BRI o

RETEEEUBRELEN 2 MK HREK
W BEMRETERSEE - EIFEKE
BEEERAASREEHRRZBRETFEH
HE B R H N FRAMBRERAEAY
&2 BRR MM BERWMESA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

100

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCI are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NCI are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the NCI having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the NCI are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

102

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

104

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEGHHE (&)

() & (&)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than plant
and machinery as described below) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

106

Plant and machinery held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their revalued amounts, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of such plant and machinery is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in plant and
machinery revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such plant and
machinery is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the plant and
machinery revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued plant and machinery is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued plant and machinery, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the plant
and machinery revaluation reserve is transferred directly
to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The

principal annual rates are as follows:

20% — 50% or
over the lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 20% - 50%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

108

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Club debenture

Club debenture with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
debenture has suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other

comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

110

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the financial assets within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, bank and cash balances are
classified in this category.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2017

4, FESTBE(F)

() eMEE

TREERR S A PEERRLIUR
R (AP REECBEEIREH
R EBENBENISHEE < HRA
RNEBMEEZAKETT)  LVFE
NEFEMNERREXZRATE-

AEEREREENDRATER: B
AEERERRAHEEZERE
E-BENBERTKEEMEEL
REmE-ERERERERESHE

EREEDE-

(i) EFRERKRES

B N R MR IR R B AR B E 2 AT
BINRZETETIASRME
B HEWERRNSRE ZEE
ERE HA AR A TR X (7
BB BB R R B MR RR
SI) I8 AT AE H Y 3k A BT 4[]
R HE - —REWE S M HA
RE RITERERESTIDER
It X Rl o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEGHHE (&)

(i) () EREE (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) TREELTHEE

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired, at
which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

112

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTBE(F)

() Financial liabilities and equity instruments () SHEERKRATE
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified TREBEMRATARBEMII VA
according to the substance of the contractual BRZHABRRBETEREELRE
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a TEHMBEENMRATANTEE R
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. BRATAREAEEBRBTNHBEFR
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a BEERAEEEEFRERNEM
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting SR -IETEHEBENREKANT AR
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for RS EREREN T X
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

(m) Borrowings (m) BE
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of BEVFTRATEHIRFEENRZS
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at FXANTERR - H 1% LA B BR A =K 1R 8 8
amortised cost using the effective interest method. PXANGT & -
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the BESBERRDEE RIERXEEA
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement BRAREN ELaEERRERS
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting He st & A 1218 A 12 R VE Rl
period.

(n) Trade and other payables n) EREZREMIRR
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their ENE S REMBRIPER T ERE
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost R H 1% B DA B BR R 3K 28 85 B AR
using the effective interest method unless the effect of AECBREFTEFERM ERBR
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are T ERNESREMBRRAIZKARE
stated at cost. 5B o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

114

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Media related service income is recognised when the
service is rendered.

Subcontracting fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEGHHE (&)

() Employee benefits (9 EEEF

ESEZEA

(i) Employee leave entitlements (i)

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFRH

BENFRERMRSGHRANE
TEERER BEREHRLE
EnESRAEHERGZANF
REEBRRGERAN G BEE
HE o

BERBMERNESKERES
R o

(i) BUELEF

AEERBEBRFIMERTEE T
RO AT EMEREREERR
sl RTEEF I ([REEE
g AEERNBESE 2
ROREEREFHFERTELZ5%
AR BREESEALRRER
1,5007T * fE I 13K 1& - RN
BEEME-

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

116

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “"PRC") and Kingdom of Cambodia
(the "Cambodia”) are members of central
pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension schemes to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension schemes
is to meet the required contributions under the
schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTBE(F)
(r) Borrowing costs ( EEHREX

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, W  BEsk A EaEREE (AIRE
construction or production of qualifying assets, which —RERAAHBEERAEIEENE
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of E)EEERENEEXNERERZSE
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are ENKABRERN BEEEAM L
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until AHBFRAEHIHEERIL - BHEAR
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their SEREENRAXNEEEEERIR
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the BRI E WS 1 & BISIER
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending FERNEEKANR -

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and H—REARBIEERESEREERN
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, BaMs AEARBAELINEERK
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation ARBEEREHEENRAERAER
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the BRAEMEBETEC - BABAXZHEAR
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the AEERBANREENEECZEE
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to RANMEFEHE (R TEREERE
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during EMmEFRELNEERIN) -

the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss FIBEHMEERAREEBEEER
in the period in which they are incurred. HEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Government grants

(®

118

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

ERER (ER) GRAH |

4, FESTBE(F)

(t)

BE (&)

EEFERGEVBERERNEERE
165 B TH {2 51 &4 SR B % R P PR AL B
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%fﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ

ERMEERRE R ZEER
ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmeﬁﬁE%m
A ABA IR ERE  RBA
MIEBEIARSARIER R T8 A
BHER - MENSTER BRI E
Rt f M T EeHafNR S
(EBEMBRINPEMEERAES
HEREZHE WTeRRARZEER
afEe

BELEHRBRERNHBARNKREE
ERMERTE R ZRER ERHARE
BRI TR EMAN AL B TR E

BTSN A R R o

ELHRAEENRRERSRE AR
at - WK B A BB B SR B s

FIA I E 2 3P EH BERR D
et B 23 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(u)

120

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is
the case, recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGU are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets

122

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered also to be objective evidence
of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,

period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements when material.
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

as at 30 June 2017 was approximately HK$27,753,000
(2016: HK$30,590,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Income taxes

(9]

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, income tax of approximately
HK$521,000 (2016: HK$478,000) was credited (2016:
charged) to profit or loss.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of
the reporting period was approximately HK$78,064,000
(2016: HK$101,064,000) after an impairment loss of
approximately HK$23,000,000 (2016: HK$37,900,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are provided in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

(e)

126

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed. If the financial conditions of the
debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required.

As at 30 June 2017, accumulated impairment loss for
bad and doubtful debts amounted to approximately
HK$1,375,000 (2016: HK$2,486,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. No
allowance for slow-moving inventories was made for the
year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(f) Fair values of plant and machinery

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the plant and machinery.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. The fair value of plant and machinery
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$16,732,000 (2016: HK$16,765,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”) which are the
functional currencies of the principal operating entities of
the Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

A TREENEZRR (&)

(f) BMERBBHAIFE

AEBZEBE Y EXAEMT GRS
i A T E EEE AT ER /&
BEERPRE TEETHEESE.
E=CELHE  SMEE A

BRI MR - RMEBR BE K
%%%2/&3?@%,%@;‘%%16,732,0007‘5
(ZZF—7 F : #¥16,765,0007T) °

§ot %5 J B ' B

2&’%.2%%%&‘ B ERE: SMNER
1:%\ % MmN E & ke KR AR E e
ZIS’%@Z*E“%;H B EIRE ST REM™
SRR 2 51t W B KIGH AR EE A

BREZEBETHNZERERE -

(a) SMNERBR

AEERBOEHR 5 BERAE
BABE T RARB (TARK])
(REETELEERIYEMLEEE)
FHE - BN KB S K SMNE R B A
o NAEBBER T EABINER S &
?&éﬁﬁ’]?l\ HHBR-ANEEE
BEEERANERR YREFE
Hv%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ%[ﬂﬁﬁ"

EZEE (2R BRAT  —'-tFFR 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 EZ_—ZF
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

128

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 78% (2016: 62%) and
91% (2016: 98%) of the total trade and bill receivables
are due from the largest third party debtor and the five
largest third party debtors respectively.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group's
financial liabilities are repayable on demand or within one
year.
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e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
pledged bank deposits and loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. These deposits and loan
bear interests at variable rates that vary with the then
prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Categories of financial instruments at 30 June

Financial assets: CREE:
Loans and receivables (including

cash and cash equivalents)

6. WBEBRER (&)

(d)

(e)

ERREYERENR (BERS
EREEEER)

Available-for-sale financial assets At EcmERE
Financial liabilities: cREE:
Financial liabilities bie:. X)W N R = WA
at amortised cost THEaE

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

EXEE (ZR) ARQA | —B—tFFH

()

R EB

AEBZFXRERKEED EFRTT
FREKE —FENBARZ —RIFE
BIRERZ B - % B R M E KT IA
FERB R R WIRE R 2 mi5ikR
M E e

B AT 5% S - AR B3 A B
AW AR R B (- A B AR
PEEI RS REAR EBIADS
AESOE TR

RAA=+BEZEMITAZER

2017 2016
—EB—tF AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
121,059 72,016

- 2,998

53,513 52,590

AT
ARBERGAHBERARRHIRZ S

BEEMERABRRAEEESAWN
NFEMRE
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS i/

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June

2017:

Description

Recurring fair value measurements:

Plant and machinery

Total

Description

Recurring fair value measurements:

Available-for-sale financial assets
Unlisted equity securities
Plant and machinery

Total

&

BEHATEIE:

s s

&t

s

EEMQVENE:

REETREE
FETBRAES
B M2

&t

(%)

=111
]

7. D¥E

() RFEEREBR-Z—LtHF XA

=St+tHAZERBEENT
Fair value measurements using: Total
NVETTERRA: Ch
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
H1E $2E #3E —B-tF
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BYEFT BYFT BYF BEFT
- - 16,732 16,732
- - 16,732 16,732
Fair value measurements using: Total
AVEERA: &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
F1/E F2[E F3E C—T-AF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
- - 2,998 2,998
- - 16,765 16,765
- - 19,763 19,763

EXEE (ZR) ARQA | —B—tFFH
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 &2 —F—+FNNA=1HILF/E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

based on level 3:

Description

At beginning of year
Total gains or losses recognised

in profit or loss

in other comprehensive income
Purchases

At end of year

# Include gains or losses for assets held
at the end of reporting period

(]

NEAD
ERRZNE N ERAR
WY
REMEERA

RE

RER

WEERBERRFAEE
ZWEHER
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7. AV{EFEE)

(b) USEIBAFEIFEZEEHK:

Available-
for-sale

financial assets

unlisted equity Plant and 2017
securities machinery Total
AHHE
SREE
FLETRAE BER ZE—tF
EH Hes Bt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BEFT
2,998 16,765 19,763
(2,998) (5,956) (8,954)
- 3,889 3,889
- 2,034 2,034
- 16,732 16,732
(2,998) (5,956) (8,954)




7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on level 3: (Continued)

Description &
At beginning of year A
Total gains or losses recognised ERR KRR ER
in profit or loss ® RER®
in other comprehensive income REMZEKA
Purchases e
At end of year RER

“ BEREEHR
RAREME®
%BR

# Include gains or losses for assets held
at the end of reporting period

The total gains recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated

7. DAVEFEE)

(b) USSR FEFEZEEHR:

B%

(#%&)
Available-
for-sale financial
assets unlisted Plant and 2016
equity securities machinery Total
AEHE
SREE
e/ i} —T—NE
BARE S BB R a8 CE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYFT BT BEFT
2,998 11,454 14,452
- (5,289) (5,289)
- 2,952 2,952
= 7,648 7,648
2,998 16,765 19,763
= (5,289) (5,289)

P E 2 AN R 2 e AR R AR
AEEMEMEERSERPRYE
BE MR 2 B BRET

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

The total losses recognised in profit or loss including those
for assets held at end of reporting period is presented
in cost of sales and service rendered in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

RBERRERBET R ZEEE
(BREAHEEZER) IRNGE1E
RAZHE RFTRHRE Z AR
5l e

L
%.TE\_
=
==

EXEE (ZR) ARQA | —B—tFFH
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 &2 —F—+FNNA=1HILF/E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

134

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 30 June 2017:

The Group financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group financial controller reports
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the Group financial controller
and the Board of Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. A¥EFEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (0 XEEFAZHERFER=-Z—t
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair FERA=ZE+THAFEFERFERAZME
value measurements at 30 June 2017: (Continued) EEMREABBEZEE: (£)

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value FIEATEFEMERZEXRTAE
measurements are mainly as below: Rig A\BUEEZHEHT|AT :
Effect on
fair value
for increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Value of inputs
Bma g5
3 HE R TABR@AYE BE HAVEZEE
Fair market value of Combination of market Estimated useful life 10to 15 years Increase
plant and machinery comparable approach and (2016: 10 to 14 years)
cost replacement approach
BERESE ATHE MELRERKAER L, et EAFH 10FE15F  #0
=i (ZZ—REF:10FZ145)
Adjusting factor 80% t0 98% Increase
(2016: 70% to 95%)
HERE 80%%E98% LM
(Z2—RF:70%%295%)
During the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2017, there RBE_Z-—RFR_ZE—tF~A
were no changes in the valuation techniques used. =tTRILEFEA WEGERZHE

A 8 o

EEER (2KR) BRAT | —e-tFFR (345



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

8. REVENUE 8.

The Group's revenue which represents sales of goods to
customers, subcontracting fee income and revenue from

provision of media related services are as follows:

Sales of goods BEmiHE
Subcontracting fee income DBEEBEWA
Media related service income A MR R RIS WA
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A

AEEBZBA HEFPZEREE 7B
BN ARIZHERBBBRSE 2 AT
T

2017 2016
—E-tF T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
142,311 131,155
10,385 5,826

- 3,000

152,696 139,981




OTHER INCOME

Design fee income

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Insurance claim received

Interest income

Net foreign exchange gains

Reversal of allowance for receivables

Reversal of provision for
employee benefit obligations

Government grants (note)

Sundry income

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

9. Hfttlezs

HETEWA

HEWE BER&RBZ
Yoz

B iR R AR

FEMA

SN Ui 25 0% B

R Uit B K 3 s B¢ [

BE@AMEE
Bipro

BT B (Hat)

FETEUA

Note: Government grants were received as refund of value-added tax and

export duty. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

attached to the grants.

EXEE (ZR) ARQA | —B—tFFH

2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETFIT
36 63

- 3,120

419 -

395 161

573 -

1,233 1,055

348 1,408

543 2,634

779 407

4,326 8,848

B URER BT 48 BY AR 4 E 15 % H 1 B 2 3R
K © 7% 5 10 B I B A R A R AR
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. P EER

ToAAREERERE D

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Swimwear and — Manufacturing and trading KSR J AR 5 - HEREBEXKE

garment of swimwear and garment K AR 2 2 on
products

Trading and media — Trading and provision of media BoNEEHEE - ZFHRIEMHER
related related services B AR

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units REE 2 A HE D BIRETRE R KR

that offer different products and services. They are managed B RSB - AN SEESRENX

separately because each business requires different technology PRz ZM R TSR ASRBLE

and marketing strategies. HHE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include other
income, finance costs, impairment of goodwill, impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets, loss on deregistration of a
subsidiary and corporate administrative and other operating
expenses. Segment assets do not include available-for-sale
financial assets, club debenture, goodwill and other assets for
general administrative use. Segment liabilities do not include
other liabilities for general administrative use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HER (&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, AmEsHER EEREBZEBEER:

assets and liabilities:

Swimwear
and Trading and
garment media related Total
KERRE EIRERABS @i
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BEFIT BT BEFIT
Year ended 30 June 2017 BZ-ZE—+F
AA=TBHLEE
Revenue from external customers REIREPZBA 152,073 623 152,696
Segment loss DEEE (21,324) (224) (21,548)
Depreciation e 9,732 - 9,732
Income tax credit FiigfiiE e (521) = (521)
Additions to segment non-current assets REDBIERBEE 3,006 - 3,006
As at 30 June 2017 R-ZB—tFXA=1H
Segment assets NEEE 99,531 1121 100,652
Segment liabilities ok =V 63,176 125 63,301
Year ended 30 June 2016 BE-T—KF
NAZTHLEEE
Revenue from external customers KEMRREZBA 136,981 3,000 139,981
Segment (loss)/profit P (BE) wA (15,217) 1,437 (13,780)
Depreciation nE 7,987 = 7,987
Income tax (credit)/expense Fria® (%) /&R (339) 817 478
Additions to segment non-current assets RNEDIERDEE 15,984 - 15,984
As at 30 June 2016 RZZ—R"E A=1A
Segment assets NEEE 107,112 1,243 108,355
Segment liabilities N EE 62,863 636 63,549
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment profit or loss:

Total profit or loss of reportable segments
Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of available-for-sale

financial assets
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary
Unallocated amounts:

Other income

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Consolidated loss for the year

140

10. 2 HEHR (&)

DEpIEE 2 YR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB FoT
ARG D EBEREE (21,548) (13,780)
B R E (23,000) (37,900)

AHEESREERE
(2,998) L
i —HEB AR ZEE - (450)

ROBLEHE:

E A 4,326 8,848
THRER (7,145) (7,746)
B FS B AR (976) (525)
FREZEEE (51,341) (51,553)

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2017




10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

10. ZERER (&)

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:

Assets

Total assets of reportable segments
Goodwill

Available-for-sale financial assets
Club debenture

Other assets

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Total liabilities of reportable segments

Other liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

idis
53d
Iff
D
okt
=
L

mt
BN
CRb
mF

PR
s

B I ot I
= 1j
i
3 I
i

Hitp&E
RAEERE

a1
A D HE e
H A 2 £

REAERE

Apart from the above, the totals of other material items

disclosed in the segment information are the same as the

consolidated totals.

EXEE (ZR) ARQA | —B—tFFH

THEEREBEZHER:
2017 2016
—E i ==K %E
HK$000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
100,652 108,355
78,064 101,064
- 2,998
50 50
52,458 8,028
231,224 220,495
63,301 63,549
1,844 2,042
65,145 65,591

Bk Lt E SN Ry BER B 2 EMEK
BIR S RERR -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information:

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of

the customers and information about its non-current assets by

location of assets are detailed below:

Hong Kong

PRC except Hong Kong

and Macau
Cambodia
United Kingdom
Spain
Sweden

United States of America

Netherlands
Israel
France
Denmark
Ireland
Canada
Australia
Others

Consolidated total

142
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10. 2 HEHR (&)

HwEEHR:

AEBRBINREPZBA (REFPHE
o) RESERBEEEN (REEMED

i) AT
Revenue Non-current assets
O FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZT-RF —E—tF ZT-RF
HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$000
BEFT BETT BYEFT BETFT
108,335 59,928 82,405 105,886
350 13 2,771 2,019
10,366 5,826 20,691 23,799
8,179 16,932 - -
4,493 16,136 - -
9,405 15,391 - -
1,185 278 - -
6,227 4,954 - -
2,111 2,682 - -
578 620 - -
81 353 - -
365 11,279 - -
- 272 - -
- 4,381 - -
1,021 936 - -
152,696 139,981 105,867 131,704
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. ZEER (&)
Revenue from major customers: REFEEFZWA:
2017 2016
—E i =EF =5
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Swimwear and garment segment KERREDH
Customer a (note) BFa(kit) N/ATE A 15,391
Customer b ZFb 106,947 53,748
Note: Customer a did not contribute 10% or more than 10% of the total K BRalrEMASEREZE_FT—+tFA
revenue of the Group during the year ended 30 June 2017. =+HIEFEHBRAZ10%10% K L o
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BBERAR
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB
Interest on other loans E A ERFE 976 525
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e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12.
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERRR 1 — BB ISR
Overprovision in prior years BAFEHRERE

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ BNHAR 1B —h B> E S/

Provision for the year FARE
Deferred tax (note 29) RIERIE (M17£29)
Income tax (credit)/expense FTs® (Ke) B

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2016: Nil).

Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.
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Fas (%) BHA
2017 2016
—g—tf | —FT-A%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRTT BEFT
- (33)
- 32
(521) 479
(521) 478

RN ASERF R EERBEN Bt
BAELBTRENGHEE (ZF—XRF:

')

H b5 2 & SRA a8 M B TR B < Jh iR AN &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits

Tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible

Tax effect of other temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
previously recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Overprovision in prior years

Income tax (credit)/expense

B B Al 5 18

BEBFEHE16.5%
(=Z—7"F:165%)
FTECHIA

BERBRBA Z RGBT E

A HBAS 2 RIE &

4B

=

AEREMERER L
MR8
AERRABBR BT E
B EFEARMER
BMIEBRZHETE
MEBARTRRE ZZE
BEFEBEERE

PRSH (%) &R

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFRH

12. FiB% (B&R) &R (&)

NI RFTEHE LR A B ERARE
MEREAFEE HRK:

2017 2016
—g—tf | —FT-~%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRTT BEFT
(51,862) (51,075)
(8,557) (8,427)
(10,450) (7,629)
15,026 15,152
(9) (260)
3,692 1,738
(45) (74)

(178) 11
- (33)

(521) 478

7 3
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FREHE
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEEZFABBEHNER (5FA) THIE
the following: H:
2017 2016
—E-tF —ET—RF
HK$000 HK$000
B TF T B For
Auditor’s remuneration = BRE BN & 850 870
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEKA 152,140 133,834
Depreciation e 9,732 7,987
Allowance for receivables & UK R I B 275 1,283
Reversal of allowance for receivables JE U5 55k T8 1 A 1 B (1,233) (1,055)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AfEESREE 2 RERE
financial assets 2,998 -
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses HNEE (Uhzk) /B5 1B 5 (573) 43
Operating lease charges THIREBF2REHERX
for land and buildings 4,848 4,619
There is a reversal of allowance for receivables of AFEFERUFRBZEERRBAOREK
approximately HK$1,233,000 (2016: HK$1,055,000) for the 1,233,0007T ( =& — 754 : & ¥1,055,000
year, being the result of persistent effort on the management TL) EeERREAFES NRNE SRR
of quality of trade receivables and certain long overdue debts ERcEEERRKEE TREAGPES
are recovered during the year. FrE e
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and BRETERASIEE THRA  TENREE
operating lease charges of approximately HK$67,831,000 FE X 475 %67,831,000T (ZF— X
(2016: HK$50,678,000) which are included in the amounts F : % #50,678,0007T) * Jiat A EX 5 5l
disclosed separately above. BEHEA-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EERFBAX

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—REF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BB FT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T TEAT N2 AL 63,484 55,302
Retirement benefit scheme contributions i /R 4& #5121 i 5% 2,157 e
Reversal for employee benefit obligations & & #& #I| & 1T = # @l (348) (1,408)
65,293 55,889

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (@) BhE&—EHEMERTE
Contributions totalling approximately HK$11,073,000 RE R B A %11,073,000
(2016: HK$10,594,000) were payable to the fund at the T (ZF— 745 : £ %10,594,0007T )

year-end. AARXNILIEER
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 14. EERABEX (#2)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EREREHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during RAFE AEERAESEaHFMAL
the year included one (2016: one) director whose BE—R2(ZE—RE: —R)ES-
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in HEHMEE R E15FEN 2P R
note 15. The emoluments of the remaining four (2016: BRe HERMMZ (ZE—RF:HE)A
four) individuals are set out below: T2 FHMEH T
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
Basic salaries and allowances ER %o KE 3,752 3,533
Discretionary bonus B TEAL 642 1,759
Retirement benefit scheme RRREF GBI 5K
contributions 66 72
4,460 5,364
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BRAHMEA T &

Number of individuals

A
2017 2016
—B—tF | ZFAF
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 7 Jp 2= 8 1,000,000 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 % 1,000,0017C % /8% 1,500,0007C 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 &#1,500,001 7T % 4 #2,000,0007T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 %2 500,0017C % /8 #3,000,0007T - 1
4 4
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 Ei 2 —F—+F N NA=1HI F/F

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EEFERER
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EE=HM
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BEFZHMEN T :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REABEADARHNBAAES 2 EARENHE

Employer’s contribution
Estimated money to a retirement
Fees value of other benefits benefit scheme Total
e AtERI 2 A HE EEEAERNTEER @t
(Note (i)
(Hii()
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE-tF | Z5RF | ZB-tF | Z2RF | 2B-tF |25 F | ZB-tF |25 F
HKS'000 | HKSO00 |  HKS000 |  HKSO0O |  HKS000 |  HKS©000 |  HKS0O0 | HKS000
BETr | BEFr | A¥Tr | BEFr | A¥Tr | EEir | A¥Fr | BEr

Executive Directors BITES

M. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph sk 600 600 1,720 1877 18 18 2338 2495

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George FEREE - - - - - - - -
600 600 1,720 1877 18 18 2,338 2,495

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BREE 9% 96 - - - - 9% 9%

Mr. Lee Chung Mong, John FEREE 96 9% - - - - 9% 96

Mr. Tam Wing Kin EREEE 9% 9% - - - - 9% 9%
288 288 - - - - 288 288
888 838 1,720 1877 18 18 2,626 2,783

Note: (i) Estimated money values of other benefits include rent HtaE: () HEmEfzastBEefEe E

paid, share options, insurance premium, etc. © BRE RRES-
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors FARBEEFETHABREMEEN
waived any emoluments during the year (2016 Nil). BEAMEFM (T —RF &)
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

15.

16.

17.

150

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$46,075,000
(2016: HK$47,251,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 5,530,801,299 (2016: 5,028,526,030) in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares and the effect of all potential ordinary
shares would be anti-dilutive for the years ended 30 June 2017
and 30 June 2016. Diluted loss per share was the same as the
basic loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2017 and 30
June 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 Ei 2 —F—+F N NA=1HI F/F

18. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

18.

Tax effects relating to each item of other comprehensive

income for the year:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of available-for-sale
financial assets

Redlassification adjustment for
impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets transferred to
profit or loss

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Other comprehensive income
for the year

BERNRBL
ERER

IHHEEREEL
RTEE

REREREY
AfHECREE
REEHHEHE

EffNx BERREZ
aH

FREM2ENE

Hfth 2 [ W &

ERFAEMEmBRESERE 2HBER

45 -
2017 2016
ZE-tE i SN
Amount Amount Amount Amount
before tax Tax after tax before tax Tax after tax
RBR2E BE  BE#GSE | REeE BE  RE%SE
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BETT BEFT BEFT BETT BT BT
(147) - (147) (552) - (552)
(2,998) - (2,998) = o a
2,998 - 2,998 - - -
3,889 (935) 2,954 2,952 (665) 2,287
3,742 (935) 2,807 2,400 (665) /35!

EXEE (ZR) ARXA | —B—tFFH
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 &2 —F—+FNNA=1HILF/E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. % BERRE

152

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B ZER
HENREE BERKE RAERME AE CE ]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BT BT BT BEFT
Cost or valuation BAESRGE
At 1July 2015 RZE-RAF+A—A 7,389 11,454 1,942 2,314 23,099
Additions R 6,718 7,648 627 991 15,984
Write off/disposals s/ e - - (671) (500) (1,171)
Surplus on revaluation EhAH - (2,337) < - (2,337)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 RZB—R%F
NAZTAK
ZTRE
+HA—H 14,107 16,765 1,898 2,805 35,575
Additions = 942 2,034 30 - 3,006
Surplus on revaluation RS = (2,067) - - (2,067)
At 30 June 2017 RIZ—+%F
~NA=tH 15,049 16,732 1,928 2,805 36,514
Accumulated depreciation and RERAE
impairment
At 1 July 2015 R-B-RFLA—A 304 . 1,343 1,811 3,458
Charge for the year FRHX 2,169 5,289 227 302 7,987
Write off/disposals Hise /& - - (671) (500) (1,171)
Write back on revaluation BffiKED - (5,289) - - (5,289)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 RZE—RF
NA=TARK
—ERE
+A—H 2,473 = 899 1,613 4,985
Charge for the year FRRY 3,139 5,956 284 853 9,732
Write back on revaluation BfiRED - (5,956) - - (5,956)
At 30 June 2017 RZZ—1%
S = 5,612 - 1,183 1,966 8,761
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2017 RZZ—1#
~NA=TH 9,437 16,732 745 839 27,753
At 30 June 2016 RZE—RF
~NA=TH 11,634 16,765 999 1,192 30,590
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 19. W% -BERRE (&)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2017 of the FIEER-_T—tFA=ZTHZKRK
above assets is as follows: B EEITHAT:
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BR-REBER
HENEER B R RAERE AE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BYTT EYFT EYF BYF BYTT
At cost BRAE 15,049 - 1,928 2,805 19,782
At valuation ZihE - 16,732 = = 16,732
15,049 16,732 1,928 2,805 36,514

EEER (2KR) BRAT | —e-tFFR (53



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wRAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z —F—+F A=+ HIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2016 of the

19. ¥ BERRHE (&)

FIEER-_Z—RENA=ZTHZEA

above assets is as follows: BERHEITHOT :
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BRC-EER
HEWEES BER#eE BAERE AE k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At cost RKAE 14,107 - 1,898 2,805 18,810
At valuation RIGE - 16,765 - - 16,765
14,107 16,765 1,898 2,805 35,575

The Group's plant and machinery were revalued at fair market
value on 30 June 2017 by reference to market evidence
of recent transactions for similar plant and machinery by
International Valuation Limited (2016: GA Valuation Limited),
an independent firm of professional valuers.

The carrying amount of the Group's plant and machinery
would have been approximately HK$12,162,000 (2016:
HK$13,946,000) had they been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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B EBRAR (ZF—R"F  REFE
BERARIR-ZT—LtFARA=1THZ2R
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20. GOODWILL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2—F—+F N NA=1HI F/F

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at

acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had

been allocated as follows:

Cost

At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016,
1 July 2016 and 30 June 2017

Accumulated impairment losses

At 1July 2015
Impairment loss

At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016
Impairment loss
At 30 June 2017

Carrying amount

At 30 June 2017

At 30 June 2016

RAfE
RZ%F—
RitHE

i

REBE
i
RZE
REBE
i
REE

nZ%—

R=%—

EFtA-H"

E-RERAZTH

~EEA-BR
tFRA=TH

BR
EftA-H

ANEARA=TH
—~EtA-H

tEAA=1H

t#XA=1H

ANEAA=TH

20. BHE
REBEHEBzBERNKBERORER
HAAIRERNEBEHZREELEMN-B
SR BRAEGNT :

Provision of
on-line shopping
advertising Garment and
and media swimwear
related services Swimwear - Ricotex
- Luxey Online - Easy Time Industrial
Solutions Limited  Trading Limited Company Limited
(“Luxey Online") (“Easy Time") (“Ricotex”) Total
(note (@) (note (b))
REtE LB
BERER
RERE-
EXMLER K% -Easy Time RERKE
EBRAR ([§%  Trading Limited -FEERKXER
BLEe@l) ([easyTimel) AR (HZE] ag
(Hita) (Hitb)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
EETT AETT AETT BT
75,343 640,966 61,457 771,766
75,343 563,459 - 638,802
- 37,900 - 37,900
75,343 601,359 - 676,702
- - 23,000 23,000
75,343 601,359 23,000 699,702
- 39,607 38,457 78,064
- 39,607 61,457 101,064

ERER (ZER) BRLAR | —2—tFFR
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(@ The recoverable amount of the swimwear CGU is determined
from value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth
rate and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area in which
the business of the CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and
revenue are based on past practices and expectations on market

development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2016: five) years with residual period using the growth rate of
3.00% (2016: 3.99%). This rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group's activities of manufacturing
and trading of high-end swimwear and related garment products is

15.00% (2016: 14.57%).

(b) The recoverable amount of the garment and swimwear CGU is
determined from value in use calculation. The key assumptions for
the value in use calculation are similar to the value in use calculation

of swimwear CGU as stated in note (a) above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2016: five) years with residual period using the growth rate of
3.00% (2016: 3.99%). This rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group'’s activities of manufacturing
and trading of garment and swimwear is 14.60% (2016: 14.60%).

Due to the unsatisfactory performance and the uncertainties
arising from its possible restructuring, the Group has revised its
cash flow forecasts for this CGU for the nine months ended 31
March 2017. The recoverable amount of this CGU is approximately
HK$105,000,000 as at 31 March 2017, which is lower than the
carrying amount of this CGU. The goodwill has therefore been
reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of an
impairment loss against goodwill of approximately HK$23,000,000
during the nine months ended 31 March 2017 and year ended 30

June 2017.
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20. & (&)

Mz

(a)

N Z RS EE BN 2 AT D S B RBE
REEAEEMEE -EAEBEFEZEZE
RREHA BB SRR FIFEEHN K
KIRAB R - AL BN E REIR R AR
BATREIR R - ZB IR KRR B A5 E
RREEGAREREREELEUE
B2 E R R R R TIAR & EL B
WM%FZ%EZﬁﬁﬁii’V%/Ei‘ETE%
B FREERME RWATIABEE I N EH
HER AR HELE-

AEBGRZESRERAIERAHRES
HEZRERE (ZE—NF: AF)PKE
SR T EEEFA3.00% (ZF—/NF:
3.99% ) 2 EREFHE -BREL X RBEH
Mz AR RER - ARBERAAR
SEEREESRAEREEREER Y
B2 BRRERE ZHLER5.00% (ZF
—NEF:1457%) °

AR RIKERSEE B 2 BT R
EREETEZEE FEREBNEEME
AR EBREELUN EXHE@ WW%Z%
EReEABUZERAEEFE

AEBEGHEZBERERANEEERES
HEZARKEF (ZZE—RF: LF)YHKE
B KRBT BHREA3.00% (ZF — <4
3.99% ) 2 BEREFHE - FRALL R RBEEE
Sz FHRARRE - ARBERER
%@@ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂ&%&ﬂ%é%Z%ﬁZﬁ
BB EREZLLER1460% (ZF—RF:
14.60% ) ©

HREERRBETEEREAEEAB R
THEAR AEEEBITEHEE=-Z—+
FZA=tT—HLENEAAZHUREELES
ZzREREEN BBEEELEMN -
—+tFE ==+ HAZAKREELENES
#105,000,0007T - EERURSEESN 2
FREE Al IERBEE=_T—tF=H4
=t+t-BALEhEAREE=Z—tF~A
=+ HLEFEEBERDERMEBIBLBE
23,000,0007T 8 2= FE AT Uy 5] <6 58 ©



Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017 are as

follows:

Name

L

Easy Time
Easy Time
Synergy Chain Limited
Synergy Chain Limited
Luxey International (Hong Kong) Limited
EXER (FB)BRAA
Luxey International Group Limited
(formerly known as
Luxey Finance Limited)
EXEAREEERAR
(AIBERERBERAR)

Luxey Online
ERXRLER

Ratio Knitting Factory Limited

MEBBERERAR

Ricotex

Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Ricotex Cambodia”)

Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd.
(TRicotex Cambodia |)

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
M 2,
ERREXLE

BVI
REBRAES
BVI
REBRAES
Hong Kong
9

Hong Kong
BE

BVI
RBRAES

Hong Kong

BA

Hong Kong

B

Cambodia

RHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z_—F—+FNNA=1HIFE

Particular of
issued share capital

BRITRAFE

1 ordinary share of US$1
1R1ZTZ ERR

1 ordinary share of US$1
RIETZ EBR
10,000 ordinary shares
10,0008% & 38 %

100 ordinary shares

100 & i

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BRAEGBIETZ
100H% & & A

500,000 ordinary shares

500,000/% & i &

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000/% & i

Registered capital of
US$1,000,000/paid up
capital of US$1,000,000
781,000,005 7T,/
B4 2 $71,000,000% 7T

21. RMBARZRE

RZE—LER
RSN

Percentage of ownership interest

EEERDL
2017 2016
—E-tE 2R
Direct Indirect Direct
B Gk B
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
- 100% -
- 100% -
- 50% -
- 50% -

A=tH MBRRZF

F
Indirect

&

100%

100%

50%

50%

EXEE (ZR) ARXA | —B—tFFH

Principal activities

FREH

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER

Microfinance business

PNERAXEY

Trading and provision of
media related services

B 5 R RG B EE RS

Investment holding and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products

REZRREERmKEAR
BRREER

Investment holding and trading
of garment products and
swimwear

REZRREEREEMRK
£

Manufacturing and trading
of garment products and
swimwear

EERBEERRERRKE
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21. RIERARIZ®RE (&)

158

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of
Name operation issued share capital Percentage of ownership interest Principal activities
AL Lt 2
£ BRREXHE BRTREFE EEREBEIL FEXB
2017 2016
—E-tF —ERE
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
BEE 3 B &
Yofiel International Group Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100% - 100%  Inactive
FEBEREEERAR ) 10,000/% & i A% BEX
RHEEES (ORI ERARA PRC Registered capital of - 100% - 100% Inactive
Global Post E-Commerce Trading RMB4,000,000/paid up
Limited (“Global Post”) * capital of RMB4,000,000
RESEES (RIDERAR e & 7R AR #4,000,000 EEX
(MRH]) * T/ BRRBAARY
4,000,0007T
PR BERERAR PRC Registered capital of - 100% - 100% Inactive
(TIPS HK$9,500,000/paid up
capital of HK$8,100,000
IFmE T BERERAR H Efit & 77 #9,500,000 mEE
(HIFImeEs]) T/ BRI RBRAE
8,100,0007T
REMERKERRA ("REFIE") PRC Registered capital of - 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and trading
HK$8,000,000/paid up of high-end swimwear and
capital of HK$8,000,000 related garment products
REFEHKRERAR ([REHAE]) i at fif & 7578 #:8,000,000 AERBERRKERIEH
T/ BRRBRA A PR m
8,000,0007C

© The English name of this company represents management’s best

efforts in translating the Chinese name of this company as no

English name has been registered.

Global Post, )T 7T #%5 and & Z2 7|4 are wholly-owned foreign

enterprises established in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21. RE AR ZRE (&)

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial

RESHAEEMSBEKN KB ERE
2Ty eIREHAT S5 o

information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.
Ricotex
Name 7 FEE
2017 2016
=ki=aetE =N
Principal place of business/country of FEEEMD MM Hong Kong/Hong Kong
incorporation XA B SR 58 /&8
% of ownership interests/voting rights EIERERMFTEZ
held by NCI HEREER  REEBSL 50%/25% 50%/40%
2017 2016
—E—t& —Z— N
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
At 30 June: RAA=+8:
Non-current assets IERBEE 20,695 23,808
Current assets MENE E 53,789 37,451
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (729) (283)
Current liabilities mEAE (69,308) (47,675)
Net assets BESE 4,447 13,301
Accumulated NCI RET I 2,223 6,650

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFR

s



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21. RERBI2RE (&)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—REF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Year ended 30 June: BEABA=1THLFE:
Revenue A 127,273 97,117
Loss B8 (10,531) (8,068)
Total comprehensive income 2HUK S AREE (8,853) (8,068)
Loss allocated to NCI SBLTIEERER 2 BB (4,427) (4,302)
Net cash used in operating activities KL EENFTRIR €558 (22,583) (19,139)
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMAE ST (1,165) (12,331)
Net cash generated BEEBE RS FE
from financing activities 21,000 19,000
Net decrease in cash and RekREEFEDY
cash equivalents W F R (2,748) (12,470)
As at 30 June 2017, the bank and cash balances of the RZE—+FRA=1TH TxEERFH
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB ZHMBRALMARBAREM ZRITRIRE
amounted to approximately HK$1,537,000 (2016: EIF A A7B#1,537,0000 (ZF— /K F:
HK$2,837,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is 75 #£2,837,0007T) - AR H iR R INEE
subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and SR P A B 2 SN B B AR A K A5 B - BB
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign RATEEE IRIRTE ©

Exchange Regulations.
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

23.

22 THHESHREE

2017 2016
—E2-tF A S
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BB FT
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value FEEMBRAES  ZAFE
Charmston (Holdings) Limited Het (S8 BR AT
(“Charmston”) (et ] ) - 2,998
On 27 June 2017, a special resolution was passed by the RZTE—tFANAZ+TLH HEFRRB
members of Charmston to apply for deregistration of BT RR R AR A T tH A - R

Charmston. As Charmston was in net liabilities position, the
investment in Charmston was considered as non-recoverable
and an impairment of approximately HK$2,998,000 was made

against the available-for-sale financial assets during the year #2,998,0007T 2 R (& °

ended 30 June 2017.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R
F B o

LK an

BRFERRERR REFZRERI /T
e WREE—T—+tFA=1+H
LEFER pRAHLESREEFERNLE

AL ESREENEEREN-

23. 78
2017 2016
—EB—+F —ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2,354 5,872
1,501 5,315
291 2,098
4,146 13,285

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFR
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 14 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.

W E 5 IR R’
B B E RE A EYGRIR

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the

invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Current to 30 days
31 -90 days

91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

BIEAZE30X
31REIOKR
91RE180K
HiB180K
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24. BWE 5 K HEMARK

2017 2016
—g—tf | A%
HK$°000 HK$°000
ERTT BEFTT
41,220 20,590
3,339 2,749
44,559 23,339

AEEHREFHANBEZERUEERE -
BEH— RN TF14290K - BUEFHR
EaEERE -NRFPEATARMNRK AE
(B8] 3R 7 B M 5 R 2 I R (B AR B W B IE o
EETHEHNaRER-

REZBHE < RWE ZRAEEBRNR

BB REDMAT
2017 2016
—F-tF —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
4,491 14,996
23,236 3,930
3,842 1,644
9,651 20
41,220 20,590
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of approximately
HK$ 1,375,000 (2016: HK$2,486,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

At beginning of year N
Allowance for the year FARHE
Amounts written off Hi 85 SR I8
Reversal of allowance for the year FARFERE
At end of year RER

As of 30 June 2017, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$13,968,000 (2016: HK$1,664,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables

is as follows:

1 - 30 days 1RE30K
91 - 180 days 91X E180K
Over 180 days BB 180K

24. BWE S R EMARR (&)

R—EBE—+FNA=1+H BEFHTA
Wz BIRE PR R EIE MRz BE
#) 575 %61,375,0007T (= — N F B
2,486,0007T) °

FEWE R R BB R R

2017 2016
—g—tf5 | ZFT-5%
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T
2,486 2,258

275 1,283

(153) =
(1,233) (1,055)
1,375 2,486

R-ZZT—tFA=Z+H BUEFER
N EE 4 55 #13,968,0007T (—F — /X
£ 1 51,664,000 ) 2 161 H3{8 I £ R (E ©
S ERIBEE TR EHE RS B
XFPFEB UERKEIEREERZE
B AT :

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEMT T
475 -

3,842 1,644
9,651 20
13,968 1,664

wzEn (21) BRAT | —-tssE 103
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. BWE S REMARRR (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables REBZERKESERREE 2 REE N

are denominated in the following currencies: T E¥REBEN:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Hong Kong dollars P 483 20
United States dollars =20 40,737 20,570
Total Rk 41,220 20,590

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH 25. EEFRITERRBITIRRESER
BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits AEEDERBRIERR/REERTRITZ
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the T ARG RITRE TAEB 2 EE %%
Group. The deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FRIIABE RERL -

As at 30 June 2017, the bank and cash balances of the RZEBE—tFAA=Z1TH AEEUA
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately RERBAUCRITRBSEFHNRBY.
HK$7,436,000 (2016: HK$8,688,000). Conversion of RMB 7,436,0007T ( =& — /5 4F : 518,688,000
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange TL) c AR HIMRINEEZ BRI E 2 5)
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale b B IR G0 N 45T - BB RTEFIERE ©

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EREZREMBER

2017 2016

—E—tF A

HK$°000 HK$ 000

BEF T BT

Trade payables JERTE SRR 4,601 13,194

Due to a substantial shareholder R —RBEEREER 100 130
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of ~ fEfT—REKI B A A Z

a subsidiary — B IR 2 BR 1,594 618

Accruals and other payables FE=HE B & B B BR 3R 17,961 19,845

24,256 33,787

The amount due to a substantial shareholder is unsecured, EN—BETEREZERAEER 28
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The NMEEEERH BN —HMBAFZ—
ZIERBREZERDIAERR 28K

BIRBRIEIE -

amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

R A HE 2 BN B 5 R ER IR o A 0

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

receipt of goods, is as follows: ™~
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFTT BT T
Current to 30 days BIEAZ30K 1,318 9,802
31 -90 days 31 RE90K 1,020 3,382
91 - 180 days 91 RE180K 2,196 -
Over 180 days BB 180K 67 10
4,601 13,194

ERER (ZER) BRLAR | —2—tFFR
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26.

27.

166

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars P
United States dollars ECV
RMB AR
Euro BX 7T
Total PR

LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
OF A SUBSIDIARY

The loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, interest-bearing at the prevailing Hong Kong
dollar prime rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited minus 1.5% and repayable on demand.

The carrying amount of the loan is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The interest rate at 30 June 2017 is 3.5% (2016: 3.5%).

The loan is arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

The directors estimate the fair value of the loan from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, by discounting its

future cash flows at the market rate, to be approximated its
fair value.
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26. ENESZREMERR (£Z)

AEBZRNEZERZREENNIE
B REA:

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
562 2,186

3,082 10,103

953 905

4 -

4,601 13,194

27. RE—ENBLARAZ—BFERRR

ZEX

RE—FHMBRARZ —BFERBRZE
AREER REL LBELRTARA
AP 2 RITA B REBEF KR 5% HE
MEBRZEBRER-

ERZEREENEBE

%

—E—+FRNA=TBZHMEAE35%
—E—NF:35%)°

)

BHNTHF RS ARBETRER
Jzx

=]
{i\/m%ﬂz@ ﬁ e

EZEBERTEMNEBERERKRRERE
it R B —fE B AR 2 — R FFERARER
ZERAFERERNTFERSE-
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

At 1 July 2015
Provision used
Reversal of provisions
Exchange differences

At 30 June 2016 and
1July 2016

Reversal of provisions

Exchange differences

At 30 June 2017

R-ZF—AF+A—H
BEREE
RERD
BN =%

b 5 E

R-ZE—tFXA=t+H

28. EERAEE

Provision for PRC employee
long service severance
payments compensation Total
(note (a) (note (b))
RER%ES TEIES
B BREE @5t
(Hiit(@)) (HiiEm)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT
482 5,962 6,444
= (4) (4)
- (1,408) (1,408)
- (382) (382)
482 4,168 4,650
& (348) (348)
. (72) (72)
482 3,748 4,230

wxEn (2R) BRAT | —e—t5sE 107
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

168

Provision for long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of services, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

PRC employee severance compensation

Pursuant to the new PRC Labour Contract Law which became
effective on 1 January 2008, the Group is required to pay the
severance compensation to its employees if the employment
contract expires and is not renewed unless the Group has offered
the employment contract on the same terms and conditions but the
offer is rejected by the employee.

Under the Labour Contract Law, the severance compensation is
calculated based on one month'’s salary for each year of employment
completed by the employee and is capped at 12 months’ salary or
12 times 300% of the average monthly salary of the previous year at
the place where the employer is located, whichever is lower. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group has made the provision for
severance compensation for the existing employees in the PRC.
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28. BEERAEE (&)

Bt -

(a)

(b)

REBRBESRE

REZERBIRE ARBEARETHERLT
EARERE R AF2E T IESBBER
HXNBEFIE - RN FIEBORNME S 2 &
B—FHSLRBEFH LRERBEAEE
ZRNEHEI Rt 2R (BIAKEER 2 4
TR o AN B0 B 77 (AR B B A S ANHE AT 14
HED -

Fh S ol T M

REE_FENF—A—BRBERZHF
BBERZE HERARERALEESSE

AIAEEAREES X NBERMEE X%
E B ARRR E G REER S R mES
T LA IR SN

RIBESHERE HRBEDREES ST
R—FEFEE—EAFSHE MLERR12
18 A #r kB PTEH EF A V9% £300%
Z12f& (RBREERE) -REHEHR A
SECHPER A RS 2 BB E F B
e



29. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised by the Group:

At 1 July 2015
Charge to other comprehensive
income for the year (note 18)
Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 12)

At 30 June 2016 and
1July 2016
Charge to other comprehensive
income for the year (note 18)
Charge to profit or loss
for the year (note 12)

At 30 June 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

R—ZE—HFtH—H

mimﬁmzﬁw 0Bk
(K1:£18)
RERBEI X
(Hii#12)

m E-RNERNA= +H
—T—"FtA
ﬁ%ﬁqﬁﬁﬂzﬁuﬂz %DME
(H75£18)
RERIBEIL
(H1i#12)

RZE—+F~A=1H8

29. IEEBIIE

MRS EER
S

EEHRBRBENREEN

Revaluation of

plant and

Tax losses machinery Total
BEBE BERBEEMG CEi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETFT BETFT
(1,121) 709 (412)

= 665 665

1,127 (642) 479

- /32 732

= 935 935
- (521) (521)

- 1,146 1,146

wzEn (2R) BRAT | —e—t5sE 100
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

29. IEEBIR (&)

30.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$71,887,000 (2016:
HK$55,531,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of the respective tax
authorities. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$292,000, HK$182,000, HK$80,000 and HK$34,000 that
will expire in 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively. Other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EE

RIEHR NEE 2 KB AR HEHEK
R A 2 BB ES B 4 BB %71,887,00070
(=T —;\4 : ##55,531,0007T) * BAR
BRI AR ERTERT 2R
FomFm - MW BMERECEHIBEEE K
BREEEBREEIIR=_E—NF =
ToTEF E—FRIFFHE
Z#975%292,0007T * B #182,0007T « B
80,0007 K 7 34,0000 2 BB - H b Bt
THE RN ER B o

BRI 2 72 M2k AR e B ES 2
TEA-

70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

2,000,000,000 convertible non-voting

preference shares of HK$0.15 each

312,500,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of
HK$0.16 each

170

30. R4
2017 2016
—E—tE ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
70,000,000,0000% & A% E &
BE0.01TT 2 LB 700,000 700,000
2,000,000,0000% & J& E &
B H0.1570 2 Al A AR
EI B ST 300,000 300,000
312,500,0000% & p& & (&
BH0.167T Z BRI AT AR
IS B S 50,000 50,000
1,050,000 1,050,000
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Issued and fully paid:

5,703,772,313 (2016: 5,098,793,790)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

1,103,333,333 (2016: 1,103,333,333)
convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.15 each

279,100,000 (2016: 279,100,000)
series B convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.16 each

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30. BR& (&)

ERTRAE:

5,703,772,3130 (=& — /< F:
5,098,793,7900% ) T A E &
B 0.017T 2 LB

1,103,333,333 (= — < F:
1,103,333,333/% ) &R EE
7S #50.1570 2 Al R
IR EREE LR

279,100,000 (=& —R4F:
279,100,0004% ) & & (B
PEM0.167T 2 BRI AT 2%
BICEREBER

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEETT
57,038 50,988
165,500 165,500
44,656 44,656
267,194 261,144

ERER (ZER) BRLAR | —2—tFFR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. IRA (&)
A summary of the movements in the authorised and issued RARBEHE_T—TFER_T—RFRA
share capital of the Company during the years ended 30 June =STRLEFEREEREBITRAZZ
2017 and 2016 is as follows: MELT -
Number of
Number of series B
convertible convertible
Number of non-voting non-voting
ordinary preference preference
shares of shares of shares of
HK$0.01each ~ HK$0.15each  HK$0.16 each Par value
BREE

BREE  E®016n2
BREE  B¥015STZz  BRIIAER
BRIz URRERR RRRE

LERYE EELREA BER™A HE
Note 000 000 000 HK$000
i T T T BT
Authorised: EE:
At 1July 2015, 30 June 2016, R_E-1&t+A-H"
1July 2016 and 30 June 2017 ZE-NERAET
B-Z8-FthA—
BRZZ—tERA
= 70,000,000 2,000,000 312,500 1,050,000
Issued and fully paid: BRARAR:
At 1 July 2015 R-E-R%tA—-H 986,359 1,103,333 312,500 225,364
Bonus issue BITAR @ 3,945,435 = = 39,454
Conversion of series B convertible BRI AR
non-voting preference shares ERZERLR ) 167,000 = (33,400) (3,674)
At30June2016and 1)Uy 2016 R-E—AERBZTA
RZE—7"%tA-H 5,098,794 1,103,333 279,100 261,144
Exercise of warrants TERMEE (© 4978 = = 50
Placing and subscription RERAE (@ 600,000 - - 6,000
At 30 June 2017 RZZ—tF A=TA 5,703,772 1,103,333 279,100 267,194
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 18 May 2015, the Board of Directors proposed a bonus share
issue to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of four bonus
shares for every one existing share held on 3 July 2015 (the “Record
Date"). The bonus shares, upon allotment and issue, will be credited
as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of an amount equal to
the total par value of the bonus shares standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company. The Board of Directors
also proposed a bonus warrant issue to the qualifying shareholders
on the basis of one warrant for every one existing share held on
the Record Date. Each warrant will entitle the holder thereof to
subscribe in cash for one warrant share at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, subject to adjustment, on the
date falling 12 months from the date of issue of the warrants (the
“Warrants”).

The issue of bonus shares and bonus Warrants were approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 24 June 2015 and a total of 3,945,435,032 bonus shares
and 986,358,758 Warrants were issued on 13 July 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, 167,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued as a result of the conversion of
33,400,000 series B convertible non-voting preference shares.

On 28 July 2016, an aggregate of 4,978,523 ordinary shares
were issued as a result of the exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to 4,978,523 Warrants. The subscription rights attaching
to the remaining 981,380,235 Warrants expired on 12 July 2016.
The premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$846,000 was credited to the Company's share premium
account.

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFRH

30. BRA (&)

Bt

(a)

R-ZE-—RAFAAT/\B EFEEZHRE
BERRRELAKRET 2ESR _F—1A
FLA=R ([REAMD EFF - RAER
D FEEPAARAT AR - HOBLEE S B ATIR - ALHSIE
BEMEEFSRARAREEZ AR R G
EBRZERBED A ZEEBARISHERE -E
ERNEERNSEBRBRELANBREE
BT EERNEHBABREHA —RRER
DB ZE— ) RIAERE - B RBIER S T
HEFA AN RBAREE T H R+ =
8 A E B RY)FREESRBIEZRMDE
#0.187T (A 7% ) LA € R0 — IRk
BB ([RBHEE])

ARBITRANBREZZTER=ZE—H
FRAZTHBRITZARARRRERN RS
ERR R L - KA $£3,945,435,032 /% 4T %
986,358,758 R EFE N T —HF+
BT=RHE%T

REBEZE=—ZT—R"EXNAZTHLFE FHEHR
33,400,000/% B 2 71| AT #A iR S 45 SERE(B SR AR -
167,000,000% & AR E (B %5 #50.017T 2 T i AR
HEETo

R-ZB—RFLAZ+N\B AR ERATE
4,978,52317 R AR P %5 2 SRS AR T AT
£ 384,978 5231 & B - #2 981,380,235

RREBH T REREER = —"Ft A
+ = B EHA - BATRR (0 2 ;m (B 475 846,000

TEFARRE 2 R E B
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. BRA& (&)

Notes. (Continued)

(d) On 18 July 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to procure not less than six placees (who were individual, corporate
or other investors) to purchase up to 300,000,000 shares at placing
price of HK$0.10 per share (the “Placing”). On the same date, the
Company and JL Investments Capital Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for and the Company agreed to allot and issue an aggregate of
300,000,000 shares at subscription price of HK$0.10 per share (the
“Subscription”).

The Placing and Subscription were approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7
September 2016 and a total of 600,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued on 14 October 2016. The premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$52,813,000, net of share issue
expenses, was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Hret: (&)

(d) RZZT—R"FtA+NH ARQRREREER
BIVEEHZ Bt BEERERERE
TNORANBEREA(FBEAN DESEM
KEEZE)AERBLEOINOTZEEERER
%300,000,000/% i 7 (TER & FIE]) - R [A
H ' AR TR EJL Investments Capital Limited
([REA]l - ARAZEERE) TR
FOBRUE RBEARERE MARRRE
NERBE0 10T 2 REBEEE RETEH
300,000,000/ 17 ([FRAEFIE]) -

EEEEERRBEEHERAQRR=ZE—X
FNAEBRITZBRERFINAE LESRKRE
#E fE K2 A $£600,000,0000% L@ DR = F
—A~E+ATMBERT - BITRHZHE
#)75%552,813,0007C (BRI 31T %)
B ARRE 2 BRDEERR -

AEBEEEAZ BN RREASEGE
RE 2N ARIRIRHE R & mE A
FiERHNE YRR REEARRBE
AR E AR o

RERIRABEARE AKE A BH
BEENTHRRZBEEZE REEAXATR
RBITHBRMD AL EEENRBER

HEEANEMAR -2 AEBREERE
Ho R ESER B AN o itk L R A B A% F RE R DA
SEEAE - ERFENRERRE (BEK
BHMBARARMRZRB MIERBEE)
MR E MR FEEBFE - ESBRE
RAEMBARRKRAR R -



30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
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30.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Total debt
Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

ER AR
wcHE MR EERR

B FEE
B ER
EEAELE

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the year resulted

primarily from the placing and subscription of shares and

increase in cash and cash equivalents.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the

Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group

received a report from the share registrars on substantial share

interests showing the non-public float and it demonstrated

continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the

year.

A (&)

N=F—tFR-FAFAA=HAZ
SERELENT

2017 2016
—E—tF —F NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT
65,145 65,591
(71,092) (48,556)
(5.947) 17,035
166,079 154,904
(4%) 11%

RAFE BERBHLETRIZARE
RRBBD MR MRS EEEB LN
ﬁo

AEBEFENB R 2 i 2 fE—
SNERSRBIE AARTE A A Z ARFF IR
BEELARB% - AEEBERNERRE
E-—DRRERREBREZBEREERD
BERE HERAKERREFER
—HET25%RE8 -

EEEAR (2KR) BRAT | —e-tFFR /4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE  31.
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

Non-current asset

Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables
Due from subsidiaries
Bank and cash balances

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Due to subsidiaries

Total current liabilities
Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RIBRARIZIRE
RBEE

BNR-RBER
H Al & W B K
& A5 B /B8 1~ Rl 5K 3R
RITMAER

REBEERE

RBEE

FERHE B M E M B AR SR
FEA Bt B X B RIR

RBEEAE
hRBEERE
EERME

BA R
ARe) B ANEEERD

(LN
ffi 178

EmAHE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 September
2017 and is signed on its behalf by:

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

28=
Chairman
F
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KRB M BRARRREEE

(a) NATFz2HBMRREK

2017 2016

—E—tF | —T-A%F

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
3 BRTT BT
139,210 162,489

275 317

23,717 6,675

35,325 6,551

59,317 13,543

1,661 1,830

390 3,571

2,051 5,407

57,266 8,136

196,476 170,625

30 267,194 261,144
31(b) (70,718) (90,519)
196,476 170,625

FERN B LFAA- AR

EX A NIIEERERRE

Lau Chun Fat, George
)i
Executive Director
HiTEE
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e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 31. XA T2 BMRRRREEEH (£)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) KATZ2HEEE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BB RE EXREf#E R ER ag
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

ERTT ERTT EETT BETT

At 1 July 2015 R-Z-H%+A-H 612,523 150 (675,113) (62,440)
Profit for the year ERRF - - 7,701 7,701
Bonus issue (note 30(3)) AIRREAT (B1i2300) (39,454) = - (39,454)

Conversion of series B convertible  E#2BZ 51| a[#4 7%
non-voting preference shares ~ ERZEE LR
(note 30(b)) (Hiz2300)) 3,674 = = 3,674

At30June 2016 and 1 July 2016 R=E—AFXA=THERK

“E—EtA-H 576,743 150 (667,412) (90,519)
Loss for the year EREE = - (33,858) (33,858)
Exercise of warrants (note 30(c) {71 RICHERE (H1:2300)) 846 = . 846
Placing and subscription RERRE
(note 30(c)) (Hi300) 52,813 - - 52,813
At 30 June 2017 RZE—t&:A=1H 630,402 150 (701,270) (70,718)
32. RESERVES 32. f#E
(a) Group () &K=
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements rEEZHEREZHESHFEINES
therein are presented in the consolidated statement BakHEME2EAKRRREEERE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and EYESEER I

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

EZEE (2R BRAR | —'-tFFR /7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. #E (&)

(b) EEZMEERAR

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

() RpEER

(i) Share premium account

178

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Plant and machinery revaluation reserve

The plant and machinery revaluation reserve has
been set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for plant and
machinery in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal

value of the shares repurchased which was paid out
of the distributable reserves of the Company.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2017
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(iii) BEREEEL #E
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(iv) EXEE#E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 EiZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time and
part-time employees, executives, officers, directors, business
consultants, suppliers, customers, legal and financial advisers
of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 18 March 2008 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

33. URGRER ZHK

LIRS E 2 BIRESTE

AprlRE —BERERTE ([%at8l])
NErt R BB AARERE 2 NINELE
Bl RER2EE -G ERBAERTEAR
BARARFIMNBAR 2B FRBES
TERAB -BEAR B XHKEM H#
[ER TP AREMYEER - ZAER =
ZENF=A+N\BER BRIERTTFIN
AHSEER TRARRZBEETFREA
s

RFZA 8 BREER T 2 RTTERERE
ZEZHERBER—KITE A2ARN
EARIREZE TR 210% - RER+Z
BABREA ZAEARBRTEREE
®KemEZBREMAIFRTIRZRNHK
BT RRARRIPMEMRE #1TR G 2
1% - T EMBELRE BREAES
PRER AR A & Eftt /£ o

BYIARRZEE TETHRABREE
BEXBEE 2 ERBHEA LT ZERE A
TS ES B IEIITE BHUME o IEHN - (27
BYPARREERRRBIUIFRITES
BEZEMBEALTZBRIER+ @A
N2 EARE BERARBEITROZ
0. 1% BE (AR TERARARMNDER
A EE) BB 78 #5,000,0007T A TE &
SEIRRRNRE RS EHt - .

EZEW (2KR) ERAT | —e-tFFER 170



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR HRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 33. URGBAEREBZNAR(E)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised or expired
under the Scheme during the year (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #iZE2 —F—+FNA=1HI F/F

34. PENDING LITIGATION

35.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following pending litigation:

On 19 January 2004, a winding up petition was filed
against the Company by certain ex-senior employees of the
Group claiming for payment in the sum of approximately
HK$594,000 from the Company in respect of an award/
order dated 20 October 2003 granted by the Labour Tribunal
in respect of the severance and bonus dispute between
the Company and the ex-senior employees. The unsettled
amounts of approximately HK$594,000 were fully accrued in
trade and other payables during the year ended 30 June 2005
and remain outstanding as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017
even though the case had ceased to be active since the year
ended 30 June 2005.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2017 the total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF
(BHEEREMF)

After five years hFi&

ERER (ZER) BRLR | —2—tFFRH

34. KRIRFA

35.

RBERR AEBEZ RRFRMOT :

RZZEZTEFE—A+TNB AEBE TS
BEERLHEARTZERER RE
BEHEN -_ZZE=F+A_+HRAD
AHEZEFNRABER 2 EHRE REAA
MIERZHR/ AL BARRRERN
A8 #594,0007 - ZEREF SN AL
594,000 e REBE—_EERAF ~A=1H
EFEEHGAB S REMBERERRS -

MR_E—R"ENA=THEER_F—+F
NAZTHRMNRBEH BERRHEEZRE
—EERFANAZTHLEFERETHE
BB o

HERE

R-B—tEAAZ A BRI
BHEERE RERENREENT

2017 2016
—EB—tF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
4,294 6,442
12,878 14,730
6,128 9,147
23,300 30,319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #EZE —F—+F A=+ HIFE

35. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35. HERE (&)
Operating lease payments represented rental payable by the REHENREAREREETHAE
Group for certain of its offices, warehouses, director’s quarter PE EFEEREBMEN2HEE -
and car parking spaces. Leases are negotiated for terms BEANTF2E210F - HERWABAEE &
ranging from 2 to 10 years and rentals are fixed over the lease WRBERAEE -

terms and do not include contingent rentals.

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALTRS
(@) In addition to those related party transactions and (@) BRIGEMBHRERBITERBECZERE
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial AT R G REHIN REBRFERN R
statements, the Group had the following transactions BEREALTZRGIT:
with its related parties during the year:
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT oT
Rental expenses paid to X THREARIZES
a related company 688 1,004
A director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, is the owner of the E=2EREELAZAENRZHAR
related company. Ao
(b) Remuneration for key management personnel of the by AEBEEXEEBEAENGHM (BN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company'’s FTARRBIEE KRR FE14(0) K FE A &
directors and highest paid individual as disclosed in note REHMALTHREBE) AT
14(b) was as follows:
2017 2016
—E—-tF ZT—REF
HKS$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Short-term benefits 55 2R 48 A 7,574 8,057
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 7 102 90
7,676 8,147
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in

the note below:

RESULTS

Revenue
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year/period from
continuing operations
Loss from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year/period

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

R&
LN
TREEERK

BERIEEZRH

BRI R
FEHEe/ (R)

REFELEEBL
FE/HBRER
KRECREEEES

ZBR

FE/HAEE

THALRL:

ARAEREBA
ESellg: S

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHHEME

TSI e EEMRAEAEE D TIB
BUARBERABZHENT

Eighteen

months

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—t+F | 2B ZZ-1f CZT-MWmFE ZE-=F%
AAZTH NE=ETFE NEEFE SREETE iR
TEE HFE HEE tEE  E+HNEA
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BYFT BMFT BEFT
152,696 139,981 121,251 96,644 154,548

- - 36,403 172,233 292,325

152,696 139,981 157,654 268,877 446,873
(51,862) (51,075) (243,106) (90,169) (82,142)

521 (478) 181 209 (1,580)
(51,341) (51,553) (242,925) (89,960) (83,722)

- - (9,255) (26,141) (10,500)

(51,341) (51,553) (252,180) (116,101) (94,222)
(46,075) (47,251) (245,444) (104,391) (84,992)
(5,266) (4,302) (6,736) (11,710) (9,230)
(51,341) (51,553) (252,180) (116,101) (94,222)

EXEE (ZR) ARXA | —B—tFFH
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBEME

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BEERAR
FRBEE
RBEE
FRBAE
nBAE

BEERE
THALREL:

ARFHEBA
IS

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2t | 22— nE "Z-HE _"EZ-NE _"—T-=F
HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BETTT BETT BET T BT
105,867 134,702 162,015 391,902 462,194
125,357 85,793 86,442 155,914 177,957
(1,146) (732) - (46,402) (44,554)
(63,999) (64,859) (42,185) (111,374) (90,116)
166,079 154,904 206,272 390,040 505,481
163,856 148,254 195,439 405,494 509,225
2,223 6,650 10,833 (15,454) (3,744)
166,079 154,904 206,272 390,040 505,481
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